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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT E[E#RE

LING Siu Man, Simon
Chairman

L X
ES

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the Board of Directors ("the Board'), | am pleased to present
the annual results of Tonic Industries Holdings Limited for the year ended
31 March 2007.

BUSINESS REVIEWW AND PROSPECTS

In the financial year ended 31 March 2007, the Group achieved a
turnover of approximately HKS$2,599 million, representing an increase of
9% when compared with the previous financial year. EBITDA and profit
attributable to shareholders were HKS140 million and HKS24 million
respectively, representing a 20% and 26% increase against last year.

The increase in turnover was mainly due to rise in sales of cable set top
boxes in the domestic market and satellite receivers in overseas markets
during the period under review. Heeding the continuous surge in
demands for ATSC (a USA digital broadcasting standard) products such
as digital high definition television (HDTV), standard definition television
(SDTV), data broadcasting and interactive television, the Group expects
the sales of cable set top boxes and satellite receivers to continue to

increase in the coming years.

Pursuing excellence
and innovation today
for building a brilliant
tomorrow
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During the year, as explained in the interim report, the adverse impacts
of continuous increase in material prices as well as labour cost and other
production cost affected the Group's profit margin. However, part of the
increase in cost was offset by the Group's efforts to diversify into products
of high profit margin.

The Group also strived to diversify its products to cover high profit
margin DVD/RW+VCR combo, TV+DVD combo, iPod video products,
HD and internet radio, cable set-top boxes, satellite receivers, TV and
GPS products, thus reduced its reliance on the production of low profit
margin DVD standalone players.

The Group also invested resources in the research and development
of ATSC products to meet anticipated significant market demand. It has
been working closely with a software development house on developing
new technologies for products like HDMI DVD player, ATSC flat panel TV,
and HDMI DVD recorder. Those new product technologies when ready
will enhance competitiveness of the Group's products.

A well-known US-based global digital video product enterprise has
contracted the Group to manufacture five additional models of 1000W
receiver, 5CD audio system and home theatre system for the US market.
Since May 2007, the Group has secured orders of USS60 million from this
customer. The Group expects the customer to order more new product
models from it, and turnover from business with the customer to increase.
Taking into account also sales to other customers, the Group believes its
business will continue to grow robustly in the year ahead.

The Group reviewed the production capacity of its Shi Pai factory which
is currently about 50%-60% utilized. It is confident of achieving full
utilization of the production capacity of Shi Pai factory by the end of 2007
to cater for already secured and anticipated orders.

As part of the Group's long term strategy, on 9 May 2007, it signed an
agreement with Cove Sunrise Inc. ("Cove Sunrise’) to subscribe for not
more than 45% of the total capital stock of Cove Sunrise. Cove Sunrise is
currently identifying opportunities to invest in business of development,
distribution and retail of consumer products in the USA, Europe and Asia.
It expects the investment to bring to the Group a network of distributors
and synergies for its manufacturing operation, which will translate into
long term benefits for the Group.
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Looking forward, the Group will continue to focus on developing digital
products of superb designs using innovative technologies to meet the
needs of customers. The Group believes that its wide variety of digital
products will allow it to expand its customer base and existing markets
and meet growing demands for its products in coming years. It is
committed to controlling cost effectively and continuously improving
operational efficiencies. It is optimistic about achieving yet stronger results
in the future.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors recommended the payment of a final cash
dividend of HK1 cent (year ended 31 March 2006: HK1 cent) per share.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 21
September 2007 to 25 September 2007, both days inclusive, during
which no transfer of shares will be effected. To qualify for the proposed
final dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company's Share Registrar in Hong
Kong. Tengis Limited at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen's Road East,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 20 September 2007.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to extend my special thanks to
our employees for their continuous contribution and hard work, to our
customers and business partners for co-operating with and supporting
the Group, and to my fellow board members for their dedication to
good governance of the Company and generate better returns for our
shareholders.

On behalf of the Board
Ling Siu Man, Simon

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 July 2007
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LING Siu Man, Simon, aged 57, is the Chairman of the Company,
Mr. Ling founded the business of the Group in 1976 and has over 30
years experience in the electronics industry. Mr. Ling is responsible for
the strategic planning, corporate policy, and marketing aspects of the
Group.

Mr. LIU Hoi Keung, Gary, aged 42, is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. He joined the Group in 1997 and is responsible for the overall
management of the Group. He is an associate of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. He also holds a Master of Science degree from The
University of Hong Kong. Prior to joining the Group, he has over nine

years experience in accounting, auditing and taxation.

Mr. LEE Ka Yue, Peter, aged 60, was appointed to the Board following
the investment of EganaGoldpfeil (Holdings) Limited (“EganaGoldpfeil”)
in the Company in June 1997. He is responsible for advising on the
financial and corporate policies of the Group as well as overseeing
overall coordination between EganaGoldpfeil and the Group. He is
also an executive director of EganaGoldpfeil and has over 35 years
experience in the timepiece and jewellery businesses as well as in the
consumer electronics industry. Mr. Lee has been an executive director of
Egana Jewellery & Pearls Limited which withdrew its listing on the Stock
Exchange on 24 October 2006.

Mr. WONG Ki Cheung, aged 57/, joined the Group in 1976 and
is responsible for the Group’s overall management, purchasing and
materials control functions. He has over 27 years experience in the
electronics component industry.

Ms. LI Fung Ching, Catherine, aged 53, joined the Group in 1976
and is responsible for the treasury function of the Group. She has over

27 years experience in the electronics industry.

Mr. AU Wai Man, aged 62, is the Group’s engineering consultant.
He is responsible for the research and development of the Group’s
new products. Prior to joining the Group in 1995, he has over 26 years
experience in electronics product engineering.

Mr. LAM Kwai Wah, aged 42, joined the Group in 1998 and is mainly
responsible for the Group’s marketing activities in Europe. He has over
21 years experience in marketing of electronics products and home
appliances. Mr. Lam obtained a higher certificate in marketing and sales
management from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. WONG Wai Kwong, David, aged 49, has over 28 years experience
in finance, accounting, corporate and taxation affairs. He is a Fellow of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a Certified Public
Accountant, He is an executive a director of both Incutech Investment
Ltd and EganaGoldpfeil, both of which are companies listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong is also an independent non-
executive director of six other Hong Kong listed companies.

Mr. Wong has been an executive director of Egana Jewellery & Pearls
Limited which withdrew its listing on the Stock Exchange on 24 October
2006, and was an independent non-executive director of Cardlink
Technology Group Limited until 28 February 2007.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. PANG Hon Chung, aged 56, holds a master’s degree in business
administration, and is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Pang has extensive experience in business management and is a
director and the general manager of Lotus International Limited. He is
also a director of Graneagle Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. CHENG Tsang Wai, aged 51, has over 29 years experience in the
garment industry and is a director and major shareholder of Vicka Limited

which is a sweater manufacturing company.

Dr. CHUNG Hing Wah, Paul (appointed on 26 June 2006), aged
61, has over 36 years' experiences with public service in administration,
operation, discipline, nursing and management. He also has over 16 years’
experiences in training and development and management consultancy
with various local and PRC Mainland providers and corporations. Apart
from being appointed as the consultant or principal consultant of many
major local and PRC training providers, he is also the director and
principal consultant of PC Consultancy Ltd. Dr. Chung holds degrees of
MBA and DBA.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YEUNG Hon Po, aged 59, is the production director of Dongguan
Xin Lian Digital Technology Co., Ltd. Mr. Yeung is responsible for
the management and manufacturing operations of the Company in
Dongguan Shi Pai Factory. He has over 39 years experience in the

production of electronic products and he joined the Group in 1978.

Mr. KWOK Yiu Wa, aged 42, is the production manager of Tonic
Electronics Limited. He is mainly responsible for the management and
manufacturing operations of the Company in Dongguan Tang Xia
Factory. He is also responsible for the automation department in the
factory. Mr. Kwok has over 19 years of manufacturing experience of
electronic products and he joined the Group in 1988.

Ms. TAM Wing Ki, Samantha, aged 31, is the director of Tonic
Appliances Limited. She joined the Group in 1998 and is responsible
for the management and marketing of the home appliances division.
She received her Bachelor of Business Administration degree from the
University of Michigan (Ann Arbor) and Master of Science degree in
Engineering Business Management from the University of Warwick.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

Demand for electronic products especially those with advanced features
increased during this year. Demand from the America markets was
significant. Sales to the markets increased by 9% compared with last year,
while cost of sales was stable throughout the Year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group revalues its properties every two years. During the year,
the value of its properties increased by HKS25 million. Last year, the
Group invested HKS$32 million as deposit in machinery and equipment to
support product diversification. The amount was recorded as deposit of
property, plant and equipment last year and was transferred to property,
plant and equipment this year. Net additions to property, plant and
equipment amounted to HKS63 million this year.

LIQUIDITY RESOURCES

On 23 March 2006, the Group signed a 3-year term loan facility
agreement for HKS 150,000,000 with a syndicate of 7 international and
local banks. The loan is on HIBOR basis and repayable by installment
starting 18 months after the date of the loan agreement. Under the
terms of the loan agreement, Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon, the Chairman
of the Group, is required to maintain at least 40% shareholding of the
Company, be the single largest shareholder and be actively involved in
the management and business of the Group, otherwise it will constitute
as default.

As at 31 March 2007, the Group had total borrowings of approximately
HKS$530 million, of which HKS$504 million was bank borrowings and
HKS26 million was for obligations under finance leases. The Group's
borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and bear interest
mainly on HIBOR basis. Bank balances and cash on hand, mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, amounted to HKS$93 million. Gearing
ratio was 81% calculated based on net borrowings over shareholder
funds.
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The Group is not exposed to material currency fluctuation risks, as most
of its receivables are in US dollars and payable in Hong Kong and US
dollars. The Group purchases forward contracts with banks to hedge
against confirmed US dollar receipts. In addition, the Group has Renminbi
receipts from domestic sales to off set the rising Renminbi expenses of
its factories in the PRC. Inflation of the Renminbi had no material impact
on the Group in the short run. Except for a few customers to whom we
offer credit on an open account basis, the Group transact business with
all other customers on letter of credit.

LITIGATION

In April 2007, Toshiba alleged the Group of infringing on its DVD
technology patents and filed claim. The claim is now under court
proceedings. To resolve the case quickly, the Group has agreed with
the DVD 6C Licensing Agency to obtain a 6C licence for the use of
DVD technology patents. Since Toshiba is a member of the 6C group,
obtaining a 6C License will in effect resolve the row with Toshiba.
Meanwhile, the Group has provided sufficient reserve in the financial
statements to cover Toshiba's claim.

On 12 September 2006, two former customers of Tonic Appliances
Limited (“Tonic Appliances”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
commenced legal proceedings against Tonic Appliances claiming for
damages for breach of agreement for the sale of goods in the sum of
HKS$ 3,653,000 together with interest. As at the date of approval of these
financial statements, the case is still undergoing discovery stage and both
parties have not yet exchanged their evidence.

In the opinion of the directors, the case was still in its preliminary stage
and it was premature to speculate the outcome of such claims therefore,
no provision was made as at 31 March 2007.

EMPLOYEES RELATIONS

As at 31 March 2007, the Group had 160 employees in Hong Kong
and 7,700 workers in its factories in the PRC. Total salaries and wages
amounted to approximately HKS 153 million for this Year. Salaries and
wages are normally reviewed annually on the basis of staff performance
appraisals and market conditions. The Group provides year-end double
pay, discretionary bonuses, provident fund, medical insurance and job
training to its staff. Staff welfare is set with reference to prevailing labour
laws in Hong Kong and China.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEE &

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of
the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
subsidiaries engage in the design, manufacture and trading of consumer
electronic products and components and home appliance products.
There were no changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year.

Details of the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out
in note 18 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2007 and the state of
affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out in the
financial statements on pages 35 to 118.

No interim dividend was paid to shareholders during the year (20006:
Nil]. The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HKI
cent per share (2006: HK1 cent per share) in cash to shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members on 25 September 2007. This
recommendation has been incorporated in the financial statements as
an allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the balance
sheet.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in note 33(b) to the financial statements and
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’'s reserves available for
distribution represent the share premium account, contributed surplus
and retained profits. At 31 March 2007, the Company's reserves
available for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie amounted
to HKS169,642,000, including the share premium account, of which
HK$9,529,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for the year. Under
the Companies Law (2002 Revision) of the Cayman lIslands, the share
premium account of the Company, in the amount of HK$59,098,000,
is available for distribution or dividends to shareholders, subject to the
provisions of its memorandum and articles of association and provided
that immediately following the distribution of dividends, the Company is
able to pay its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary course
of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 58% of the total revenue of the Group and the largest
customer accounted for approximately 21% of the total revenue of the
Group.

During the year, the five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted for
approximately 35% of the total purchases of the Group and the largest
supplier accounted for approximately 11% of the total purchases of the
Group.

As far as the directors are aware, neither the directors, their associates
(as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)), nor any
shareholders which, to the knowledge of the directors, own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in the five

largest customers or suppliers.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on pages
119 to 120. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

There were no movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year. Details of which are set out in notes 31 and 32
to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive directors:

Ling Siu Man, Simon (Chairman)

Liu Hoi Keung, Gary (Chief Executive Officer)
Lee Ka Yue, Peter

Wong Ki Cheung

Li Fung Ching, Catherine

Au Wai Man

Lam Kwai Wah

Non-executive directors:

Wong Wai Kwong, David

Pang Hon Chung*

Cheng Tsang Wai*

Chung Hing Wah, Paul* (appointed on 26 June 2006)
Ho Fook Hong, Ferdinand* (resigned on 1 April 2006)

*Independent non-executive directors
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DIRECTORS (continuEDy

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Lee Ka Yue, Peter, Mr. Lam Kwai Wah, Mr. Wong Wai Kwong,
David and Mr. Cheng Tsang Wai will retire and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The terms of office of the non-executive directors are the periods from
their dates of appointment to their retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Pang Hon Chung, Mr. Cheng Tsang Wai, and Dr. Chung Hing Wah,
Paul, and still considers them to be independent as at the date of this

report.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Group are set out on pages 7

to 8 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All the executive directors, other than Mr. Lee Ka Yue, Peter and Mr. Lam
Kwai Wah, have entered into service contracts with the Company for
terms of three years commencing from 1 October 2006. Mr. Lam Kwai
Wah has entered into a service contract with the Company for a term of
thirty months commencing from 1 January 2007.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries which s
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board
of directors with reference to the directors’ duties, responsibilities and

performance and the results of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND ESHER 2RO RERKRGE
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND wmRRE
UNDERLYING SHARES
At 31 March 2007, the interests of the directors in the share capital of RIZZHF=A=1+—8 BFREARFINLE
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part HEEE (TERESNBEEN ( [EHKEE
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)), as recorded in BEEE] ) EXVER) 2R - R AR
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section RRARBEES KRB KROIZIS2ZBEREFEZE
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock EEHH IR EEBEITAERHEITESR HHIE
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the PR ( [MZ2ESFA] ) BMeARRE REBH
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the ERXGAERRAR ( [BXAT] ) Z2EESOT ¢
“Model Code”), were as follows:
a) Long positions in ordinary shares of the a) RATREBRZHE
Company
Percentage of
Number of the Company’s
ordinary issued share
Nature of shares held capital
interest P HAEARE BT
Name of director EEHS ERME ZRERHA BRABDL
Ling Siu Man, Simon &N Corporate (note) 476,830,173 50.04
nal (HEt)
Liu Hoi Keung, Gary B9 Personal 3,706,000 0.40
EA
Wong Ki Cheung =5HE Personal 1,749,000 0.18
EA
Li Fung Ching, Catherine ESEN=] Personal 2,142,000 0.22
EA
Pang Hon Chung TIEF Personal 2,000,000 0.21
EA
Cheng Tsang Wai EL Personal 6,000,000 0.63
EA
492,427,173 51.68
Note: These shares were held by Success Forever Limited, a company Wat - ZEROBREBRLZESTMAT
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, the entire issued share Z A AlSuccess Forever Limitedf§48 °
capital of which is beneficially owned by Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon. AR ERHEBITRARE DL
EHEHE -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continueD)

b) Associated corporation

At 31 March 2007, Ling Siu Man, Simon personally held 2,850 non-
voting deferred shares of HKS 100 each of Tonic Electronics Limited,
a subsidiary of the Company.

The interests of the directors in the share options of the Company are
separately disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2007, none of the directors had
registered an interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ interests and
short positions in shares and underlying shares” above and in the share
option scheme disclosures in note 32 to the financial statements, at Nno
time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company granted to any
directors or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 38 to the financial statements, no contract of
significance to which the Company, its holding company, or any of
its subsidiaries was a party in which any director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or any time
during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Concerning the share options granted to the directors and employees,
as detailed in note 32 to the financial statements, the directors do not
consider it appropriate to disclose a theoretical value of the options
granted because in the absence of a readily available market value of the
share options on the shares of the Company, the directors were unable
to arrive at an assessment of the value of these share options
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2007, the following parties having the interests of 5% or

more of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in the
register of interests kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the

SFO:

Name

=L

Success Forever Limited (note 1)

(HiaE1)

Eco-Haru Mfr. Holdings Limited
(“Eco-Haru”) [note 2)

(Hit2)

Glorious Concept Limited

(“Glorious Concept”) (note 2)

(Hiit2)

EganaGoldpfeil (Holdings) Limited
(“EganaGoldpfeil”) (note 2)
sENEIRR SRE AR A
( TBEMERR] ) (Hat2)

Peninsula International Limited
(“Peninsula’) (note 3)

(H1a£3)

Notes:

—EELFE=A=+—H"
%&Hﬁfﬂlﬂﬁﬂ%BBGﬂmﬁﬁTEZ%ﬁn
8 AR AR D BITHRASYIIA LS Z A

T

Capacity
and nature
of interest

SO RERNEE

Directly beneficially owned

BEEREEGHA
Directly beneficially owned

BEREGHA

Directly beneficially owned

BEREGHA

Through controlled corporations

BEIEEE

Through controlled corporations

BBFIEE

et -

1) The entire issued share capital of Success Forever Limited is beneficially 1)

owned by Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon, as disclosed in the section “Directors’

interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares” above.

Number of
ordinary
shares held

FBER
REE

476,830,173

181,651,303

12,753,000

194,404,303

194,404,303

FERRREMATIRRO R
MHERD 2z s

1B A A R

ERINER

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share
capital
ERDEE BT
BREBD

50.04

19.06

1.34

20.40

20.40

BEX [ERHAZRMD REBARNDEE KA
B —EAT#E - Success Forever Limited® EB
BETRAREL X CEETLGHS -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continueD)

Notes: (CONTINUED)

2) The entire issued share capital of Eco-Haru and Glorious Concept is

beneficially owned by EganaGoldpfeil.

3) The issued share capital of EganaGoldpfeil is held as to 33.16% by

Peninsula.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2007, no person, other than
the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section
“Directors” interests and short positions in shares and underlying shares”
above, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected and continuing connected transactions of the
Company are set out in note 38 to the financial statements.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed
and confirmed that the continuing connected transactions set out in
note 38 to the financial statements were entered into (i) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; (iij on normal commercial
terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available
to independent third parties; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2007, neither the Company, nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONTINUING
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER
CHAPTER 13 OF THE LISTING RULES

In compliance with the continuing disclosure requirements under Rule
13.21 of Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules, the directors of the Company
reported the details of the following loan agreement which included
conditions relating to the specific performance obligations of the
controlling shareholder of the Company.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONTINUING
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER
CHAPTER 13 OF THE LISTING RULES

(CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Group signed a term
loan facility agreement for a syndicated loan of HKS150 million for a
period of three years. Under the terms of the agreement, the chairman
of the Company, Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon, being the single largest
shareholder and is actively involved in the management and business of
the Group, is required to maintain at least 40% of the beneficial interests
in shareholdings in the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report, being the latest practical date prior to the date of this report.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

Details of the significant post balance sheet event of the Group are set
out in note 40 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Chairman
Ling Siu Man, Simon

Hong Kong
25 July 2007
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COMPLIANCE WITH CODE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) considers that
good corporate governance of the Company is central to safeguarding
the interests of the shareholders of the Group and enhancing the
performance of the Group. The Board is committed to ensure a
high standard of corporate governance. The Company’s corporate
governance practices are based on the principles (the “Principles’), code
provisions (the “Code Provisions”) as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company has applied the Principles and the Code Provisions and
complied with the CG Code during the financial year ended 31 March
2007, with a deviation from the Code Provision A.4.2 in respect of
retirement of Directors by rotation at least once every three years.

Set out below are the status and details of compliance by the Company
of the CG Code for the year ended 31 March 2007.

THE BOARD

Board Composition

The Board has in its composition a balanced of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the issuer. The Board
has a balanced mix Directors, i.e. 7 Executive Directors, 1 Non-Executive
Director and 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors. The list of all
Directors is set out under “Corporate Information” on page 2 and the
biographies of the Directors are set out on pages /7 to 9 of this annual
report, which demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and
qualifications.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time.

Save as disclosed hereon, to the best of knowledge of the Directors, the
Board members have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship with each other.
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THE BOARD (continuep)

Board Composition (cContinued)

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive directors. Dr. Chung Hing Wah, Paul
was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 26 June
2006, and Mr. Ho Fook Hong, Ferdinand, a former independent non-
executive director, resigned on 1 April, 2006,

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-Executive Director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Board Meetings

Board meetings were held at least 4 times during the year roughly on
a quarterly basis. Dates for regular Board meetings are scheduled in
advance to provide sufficient time for the Directors to prepare for. Special
Board meetings will be held when necessary. Notice of meeting will be
given at least 14 days before the meeting. Directors are consulted for
matters to be included in the agenda and board papers will be served at
least 3 days before the meeting. Details of the attendance of the Board
meetings held for the year ended 31 March 2007 and up to the date of
the publication of this report were as follows:
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Attendance/
Number of Meetings
Name of Director EEpna HE aBEE
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon (Chairman) EOSEE (FE) 5/5
Mr. Liu Hoi Keung, Gary (Chief Executive Officer) B &E (7TEBH) 5/5
Mr. Lee Ka Yue, Peter TEASTE 5/5
Mr. Wong Ki Cheung mHELSE 5/5
Ms. Li Fung Ching, Catherine FE Az T 5/5
Mr. Au Wai Man RERLA 5/5
Mr. Lam Kwai Wah MEEE S 5/5
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUHHITEE
Mr. Pang Hon Chung ZiEPELE 4/5
Mr. Cheng Tsang Wai BB R 3/5
Dr. Chung Hing Wanh, Paul EEEET
(appointed on 26 June 2006) (RZETRFRAZTAEEME) 4/4

Non-Executive Director
Mr. Wong Wai Kwong, David
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THE BOARD (continuep)

Board Meetings (continued)

Minutes of the Board, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Executive Committee have been recorded in sufficient details
the matters considered in the meetings. All the minutes are kept by the
Company Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice given by any Director.

Directors can access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary
to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations
are properly followed.

In addition, all Directors are regularly updated on corporate governance
and regulatory matters. There is a guideline for Directors to obtain
independent professional advice at the expense of the Company in the
furtherance of their duties. The Company has also arranged appropriate
Director and officer liability insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Chairman is responsible to manage the affairs of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer is responsible to manage the day-to-day operation of
the Company’s business.

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separated and should not be preformed by
the same individual.

With effect from 1 October 2006, Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon had tendered
his resignation as a Managing Director of the Company and Mr. Liu
Hoi Keung, Gary was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. Mr. Ling remains as the Chairman of the Board of the
Company and continues to be involved in the business development of
the Company.
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THE BOARD (continuep)

Nomination, Appointment, Re-election and
Removal of Directors

The Group has a formal, considerate and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new Director to the Board. The Group has adopted
a nomination procedures and the Board of Directors, based on the
criteria established, evaluate and select candidates for the directorships.
The Board reviews the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
make recommendations regarding any proposed changes. The Directors
identifies suitable individual gualified to become board members and
makes recommendation on relevant matters relating to the appointment
or re-appointment of directors if necessary, in particular, candidates who
can add value to the management through their contribution in the
relevant strategic business areas and whose appointments will result on
the constitution of strong and diverse board. The meeting of the Board
regarding the nomination of directors shall be held at least once a year
or when necessary. In case any Director resigns from the Board, reasons
for the resignation will be disclosed in the announcement.

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that Non-Executive Directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The existing Non-
Executive Directors of the Company, except for Mr. Cheng Tsang Wai
and Dr. Chung Hing Wah, Paul being Independent Non-Executive
Directors of the Company, do not have a specific term of appointment.
However, Non-Executive Directors are subject to the requirement to retire
by rotation at annual general meetings under the Company’s Articles
of Association accomplishing the same objective as a specific term of
appointment.

In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association, any new
Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board
should be subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting
after appointment. Every Director, including those appointed for a specific
term, should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.

The Company's Articles of Association, on the other hand, is inconsistent
with the Code Provision A4.2 of the CG Code, which provides that
one-third of the directors for the time being (save for the Chairman or
Managing Director or Joint Managing Director), or if their number is not
three nor a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation at least once every three
years and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at annual general
meetings. The Board considers that Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon, Chairman
of the Board, should not be subject to retirement to ensure continuity of
leadership and stability for growth of the Company.
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Responsibilities of Directors

The principal focus of the Board is on the overall strategic development
of the Group. The Board also monitors the financial performance and the

internal controls of the Group’s business operations.

In addition, the Board is charged with promoting the success of the
Group by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective
manner. Each Director has a duty to act in good faith in the best interests
of the Company. The Directors are aware of their collective and individual
responsibilities to all shareholders of the Group for the manner in which
the affairs of the Company are managed, controlled and operated.

Director is required to keep abreast of his responsibilities as a Director and
of the conduct, business activities and development of the Group. Non-
Executive Directors have the same duties of care and skill and fiduciary
duties as Executive Directors.

The functions of Non-Executive Directors have included the functions as
specified in the Code Provision A.5.2(a) to (d) of the CG Code.

Delegation by the Board

The Board has delegated functions that are necessary and incident
to carry out the decision of the Board or to facilitate the day-to-day
operation of the Group in ordinary course of business to the senior
management and divisional heads of different units.

Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the Board
to senior management include execution of business strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate internal
controls and risk management procedures, and compliance with relevant

statutory requirements and rules and regulations.

Supply of and Access to Information

Directors will be provided in a timely manner with appropriate information
in such form and of such quality as will enable them to make an informed
decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities as Directors of
the Company.

In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far as practicable in all other
cases, an agenda and accompanying Board papers are sent in full to all
Directors in a timely manner and at least 3 days before the intended date

of a Board meeting.
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THE BOARD (continuep)

Supply of and Access to Information (continued)

Management is regularly reminded by the Company Secretary that
they have an obligation to supply the Board and its committees with
adequate information in a timely manner to enable them to make
informed decisions. The information supplied must be complete and
reliable. The Board and each Director have separate and independent
access to the Company's senior management for making further enguires

where necessary.

Training for Directors

Every newly appointed Director of the Group will receive an information
package from the Company Secretary on his appointment. The package
will include guidelines and information such as:

(a]  Guidelines on Directors” Duties;

(b} Brief notes and guidelines on Code on Corporate Governance

Practices;

(c)  The Group's code of conduct regarding the securities transactions

by the Directors;

(d)  Brief notes and guidelines on Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of the Company;

(e The Company's Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by
Directors of the Company;

() A copy of the Corporate Governance Report; and
(g) A copy of the Company’s Corporate Governance Handbook.

The senior management and the Company Secretary will subsequently
conduct such briefing as is necessary to ensure that the Director has a
proper understanding of the operations and business of the Group, and
the Director is aware of his obligation under statue and common law,
the Listing Rules, applicable legal requirements and other regulatory

requirements.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Group has adopted its code of conduct for securities transactions by
Directors on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having
made specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company has confirmed that all
Directors have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the year of 2007.

Remuneration of Directors

The Company enters into Directors” service agreements with each of
the Executive Directors (except Mr. Lee Ka Yue, Peter). Such agreements
set out the relevant terms for remuneration and other benefits. The
remuneration of the Directors was determined with reference to the job
responsibilities of the Directors, market conditions and the performance
of the Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee are
Independent Non-Executive Directors. This Committee is authorised
by the Board and makes recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and
senior management. Details of the attendance of the meeting for the
year ended 31 March 2007 and up to the date of this report were as

follows:

Members of the Remuneration
FHEESERE

Committee

Mr. Cheng Tsang Wai (Chairman) EBEEE (F/F)

Mr. Pang Hon Chung EER L
Ms. Li Fung Ching, Catherine FRAERLT

There is a formal and transparent procedure for setting policy and
procedure for fixing the remuneration packages for all Directors and
senior management. The Group will gather and summarise information
relating to remuneration policy and other remuneration related matters.
The Remuneration Committee will meet at least once a year and consider
the above information and made recommendation to the Board and

have access to professional advice if necessary.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible to present a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment of the Group’s performance, position and prospect in the
annual and interim reports. Other price-sensitive information and
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other statutory
requirements will be timely disclosed and reported.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for keeping proper
accounting records and preparing accounts which give a true and fair
view for the year ended 31 March 2007.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditors” Report” on page 33 to 34.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group maintains sound and
effective internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and
the Group's assets.

The management is responsible for the Group's system of internal controls
and the Board is responsible for reviewing its effectiveness of the Group's
System of Internal Control and its subsidiaries at least annually. The
function of reviewing its effectiveness of the Group’s System of internal
control is delegated to Audit Committee by the Board. The system will
cover all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions. The system of internal control
is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of the internal control
of the Group. The Internal Audit Department carries out annual risk
assessment on each audit area and derives an annual audit plan
according to their risk rankings. The audit plan is reviewed and agreed
by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee receives summary reports
from internal audit department. Copy of the minutes of Audit Committee
meeting will also be sent to the Board for information.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises a Non-Executive Director and three
Independent Non-Executive Directors. Mr. Pang Hon Chung, chairman
of the Committee has the appropriate professional gualification and
experience in financial matters as required by the Listing Rules. This
Committee is authorised by the Board and responsible for reviewing
the financial reports, internal controls principals and for maintaining
an appropriate relationship with the Company’s auditors. Details of the
attendance of the Audit Committee meetings held during the year ended
31 March 2007 and up to the date of this report were as follows:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

Members of the Audit Committee EREEEKE HEEERE
Mr. Pang Hon Chung (Chairman) ZEPEE (FE) 2/2
Mr. Cheng Tsang Wai BB ESEE 2/2
Mr. Wong Wai Kwong, David =ERSTE 1/2
Dr. Chung Hing Wah, Paul BEEEL

(appointed on 26 June 2006) (RZZEERFRAZ T+ HEZT) 2/2

The Audit Committee met with the external auditors during the year to
discuss any areas of concerns during the audits. The Audit Committee
reviewed the interim and annual reports before submission to the Board.
The Audit Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes
iNn accounting polices and practices but also on the compliance with
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal requirements.

The Audit Committee has not taken a different view from the Board
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the

Company’s external auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 March 2007 has
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the Company’s
auditors, Ernst & Young, is set out as follows:

Audit services B R
Non-statutory audit services relating BHBERS
to connected transaction 2 IEEERIZRTG

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

All of the members of the Executive Committee are Executive Directors.
This Committee is chaired by Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon. The other
members are Mr. Liu Hoi Keung, Gary, Mr. Wong Ki Cheung, Ms. Li Fung
Ching, Catherine, Mr. Au Wai Man, and Mr. Lam Kwai Wah, Peter. This
Committee is authorised by the Board and is responsible for monitoring
the execution of strategic plans and day-to-day operations of the business
units and making decision on matters relating to the management and
operations.

Details of the attendance of the Executive Committee meetings held
during the year ended 31 March 2007 and up to the date of this report
were as follows:

Members of the Executive Committee

Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon (Chairman)
Mr. Liu Hoi Keung, Gary

Mr. Wong Ki Cheung

Ms. Li Fung Ching, Catherine

Mr. Au Wai Man

Mr. Lam Kwai Wah, Peter
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FEHXT 12/12
RERSE 12/12
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SECURITIES TRANSACTION BY THE
RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

Under the Code Provision A5.4 of the CG Code, the Board has
established written guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model
Code for relevant employees in respect of their dealings in the Company’s
securities. “Relevant employee” includes any employee of the Group or
a Director or employee of a subsidiary or holding company of the issuer,
because of such office or employment, is likely to be in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Group and its
securities. Having made specific enquiry of all Relevant Employees, the
Company confirms that all relevant employees have complied with the

written guidelines regarding securities transactions for the year.

CORPORATE COMMUNICATION

The Group should announce its annual results and interim results in
a timely manner before the time limits set out in the Listing Rules.
Separate resolutions are proposed at the annual general meetings on
each separate issue, including the election of individual Directors. In
addition, procedures for demanding a poll at the annual general meeting
will be included in the circular to shareholders dispatched together with
the annual report. Any results of the poll are published on the Company's

website.

The Group has also maintained a website of http.//www.tonic.com.hk
which enables shareholders of the Group, investors and the general
public to access to the information of the Company on a timely basis.
Financial information and all corporate communications of the Group are

made available on the Group’s website and updated regularly.
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VOTING BY POLL AT GENERAL
MEETINGS

The Company informs the shareholders in its circulars convening a general
meeting the procedures for voting by poll and the rights of shareholders
to demand a poll to ensure compliance with the requirements on the poll
voting procedures. In accordance with article 80 of Articles of Association
of the Company, at any general meeting a resolution put to vote of the
meeting shall be decided on a show of hands, unless a poll is (before or
on the declaration of the result of the show of hands| demanded by:

i) the Chairman of the meeting; or

i) at least five shareholders present in person or by proxy and entitled
to vote; or

i) any shareholder or shareholders present in person or by proxy and
representing in the aggregate not less than one-tenth of the total
voting rights of all members having the right to attend and vote at
the meeting; or

V) any shareholder or shareholders present in person or by proxy and
holding shares conferring a right to attend and vote at the meeting
on which there have been paid up sums in the aggregate equal
to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all shares
conferring that right.

Unless a poll is so demanded and not withdrawn, a declaration by the
Chairman that a resolution has on a show of hands been carried, or
carried unanimously, or by a particular majority, or lost, and an entry to
that effect in the Company’s book containing the minutes of proceedings
of meetings of the Company shall be conclusive evidence of that fact
without proof of the number or proportion of the votes recorded in
favour of or against such resolution.

The Chairman of a meeting should at the commencement of the meeting
ensure that an explanation is provided of:

i) the procedure for demanding a poll by shareholders of the
Company before putting a resolution to the vote on a show of
hands; and

i) the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and then answer any
questions from shareholders of the Company whenever voting by
way of a poll is required.
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(ZEBRMESRE - AFHHESRET
DR T RN E T B B B8R BRR AR
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BRIEERIARBERR B ZR AR THE - BRIE/E
EMUEFHARR-BEIAAZ BB TR
BRERNBRBIREN - BEARRBRE
ik BIAEEERATIEBAMBAZAENKK
REFZRZEROBE KX -

BRAEEFECNERFABHERSIRETIIE
A :

i) BREMMERERBRUMABFRERRAZ
IR BRIR 2R

i) ETEREERRZFARFRERRER
EITIR IR BFOREF BB R AR A



Tonic Industries Holdings Limited =R 71 B 2 Rk A R 2 A

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT %5 37 #% S b 3 &

Zll ERNST & YOUNG
7ok & B OEF AT

18th Floor
Two International Finance Centre

R oA T T
B B2 a2 184

8 Finance Street, Central
Hong Kong

To the shareholders of Tonic Industries Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Tonic Industries Holdings
Limited set out on pages 35 to 118, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2007, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

B RIBEZRARDAFMKR
(RESHEZMHE L2 HRAF])

TIZEED (ATERE (8] ) BEEZERE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT %5 37 #% S bl 3R &

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors” judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’'s preparation and true
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2007
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
25 July 2007
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT #ZR&UW#E SR

Year ended 31 March 2007 BE2—_ZEZT+F=_A=+—HILtFE

REVENUE

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Other operating income, net

Impairment of an available-for-sale investment
Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Tax

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

DIVIDEND
Proposed final

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY
— Basic

- Diluted

WA

HERAR

E7

HoAt WA B g

HE K AR
1T

HAb Q2 WA
AHHEZRERE

BB A 28

I8

AR B FE AL

AEEER

IRE
FORARHII S

AAFEBERBFAA

EhEREF

=N

Notes

Fret

19

10

12

13

2007
—BetsE
HK$°000
BT T
2,599,414

(2,474,909)

124,505

14,332

(8,462)

(77,303)
8,964

(30,351)

31,685

(7.673)

24,012

9,529

HK2.5 cents3& 1l

N/ATE A

2006
e
HK$000
AT

2,392,219

(2,269,816)

122,403

8,390
(9,872)
(69,057

904
(11,110)
(23,149)

18,509

HK2.0 centsi&Il

N/AZNE

—00N E%
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET #ZeEE&ER

31 March 2007 —ZEZF+F=A=+—H

w
(e

2007 2006
—EELHF ZETREF
Notes HK$°000 HKS'000
ftzE BT T BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Property, plant and equipment S EN YN 14 704,250 633,120
Prepaid land lease payments A L ER 15 44,155 35,277
Intangible assets mREE 16 27,228 17,233
Available-for-sale investments AfHHE 2 RE 19 14,219 14,219
Non-current portion of an other receivable E fth fE U FRIE
JEMBNE S 20 4,780 5,706
Non-current portion of loans receivable FEWE R SEREEB D 21 93 281
Deposits for acquisition of items of BEYX  HE
property, plant and equipment PETEER &R 5,510 31,765
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 800,235 737,601
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories =rE 22 315,509 354,277
Accounts and bills receivables FEUER TR & % 23 199,162 277,427
Current portion of loans receivable ERE R REE D 21 188 188
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FBNFIE  Re Rk
H At e W IR 61,772 29,588
Prepaid land lease payments TafS AR E 5K 15 1,004 9,521
Equity investments at fair value RAFER ABEER
through profit or loss IR A 24 10,512 10,380
Derivative financial instruments PTESRTA 25 1,582 -
Tax recoverable AU EIF I 921 1,700
Cash and bank balances Re RRITETT 26 92,698 99,971
Total current assets MENEELRE 683,348 783,052
CURRENT LIABILITIES nREBEE
Accounts payables FERTERRK 27 288,408 441,887
Accrued liabilities and other payables FEEt B EREA
. e RIE 65,858 77,555
S Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings STRRITREMEE 28 373,111 254,588
S Derivative financial instruments PTESRIA 25 - 1,496
g Tax payable FER A IE 5,410 1,310
2: Total current liabilities mBE e 732,787 776,836
O
? NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) RBEE (BRE) FHE (49,439) 6216
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEAERABERS 750,796 743,817




Tonic Industries Holdings Limited =R 71 B 2 Rk A R 2 A

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET #ZeEE&EXR

31 March 2007 —EZE+F=A=+—H

2007 2006
—EELEF —ETRF

Notes HK$'000 HKS$ 000

FifaE BT T BT
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EBEEZAERABERS 750,796 743,817
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBAMB
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings SFERITREMEE 28 156,785 206,239
Net deferred tax liabilities EERIB A EFE 30 52,641 29,512
Total non-current liabilities JEmE B ELRTE 209,426 235,751
Net assets BEFRE 541,370 508,066
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to equity AATERBFEA

holders of the Company EihEm
Issued capital B EITRA 31 95,289 95,289
Reserves R 33/a) 436,552 403,248
Proposed final dividend FR AR B AR S 12 9,529 9,529
Total equity BT 541,370 508,066
Ling Siu Man, Simon Liu Hoi Keung, Gary
EDX =4
Director Director
S 2

—00N #%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

ll‘7.r | 1;&

Year ended 31 March 2007 @i_7 TH+F=—RA=1T—HILFE

At 1 April 2005

Exchange realignment

Total income and expense
for the year recognised
directly in equity

Profit for the year

Total income and expense
for the year

Final 2005 dividend paid

Proposed final 2006 dividend

At 31 March 2006

At 1 April 2006

Surplus on revaluation

Deferred tax debited to equity:

Surplus on revaluation
Change in tax rate
Exchange realignment

Total income and expense
for the year recognised
directly in equity

Profit for the year

Total income and expense
for the year

Final 2006 dividend paid

Proposed final 2007 dividend

At 31 March 2007

* These

reserve accounts

REGERERL
FERPAR
Fx R

RERAH

RERPRAR

R 8
BRN=ZZRFRARS
ﬁﬁfqyuiiﬁh%

Ef5RH
RIS 2 BIERE :
Efi2H
RELD
X

IESERTER
RERRAR
hEA

AER A

KERRAR

Fx
ERNTERAERRE
RE_FZLEREBE

RZZZLE=R=t—H

comprise

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARARRESE ARG

Share Asset Exchange Proposed

Issued  premium Contributed revaluation fluctuation Retained final
capital  account surplus reserve reserve profits  dividend Total

B8 40 BE SEND HOR
RA HER S ARK ERREE WA REEN  RERE £
Notes HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
i3 BETT ARTT BBtz B¥Tn AT B%Tr B%TT AT
95,289 59,098 280 91,613 (7,504) 248,416 9,529 496,721
- - - - 2,264 - - 2,264
- - - - 2,264 - 2,264
- - - - - 18610 - 18610
- - - - 2,264 18610 - 20,874
. . - - - - [9,529) (9.529)

12 - - - - - (9,529) 9,529
95,289 59,098* 280* 91,613* (5,240)*  257,497* 9,529 508,066
95,289 59,098 280 91,613 (5,240) 257,497 9,529 508,066
14 - - - 24925 - - - 24,925
30 - - - [3,120) - - - (3,120)
30 - - - [15,253) - - [15,253)
- - - - 12,269 - - 12,269
- - - 6,552 12,269 - 18821
- - - - 24,012 - 24,012
- - - 6,552 12,269 24,012 42,833
- - - - - 19,529) (9,529)
12 - - - - - (9,529) 9,529 -
95,289 59,098* 280* 98,165* 7,029%  271,980* 9,529 541,370
the consolidated reserves of * hEFEREPREAEAGEEABRAN

HK$436,552,000 (2006: HKS$403,248,000) in the consolidated balance

sheet.

436,552,000/ 7C (ZZFZT /N4 © 403,248,000/

TT) fREFEME -
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT LGB ERER

Year ended 31 March 2007 BE-_TZ+F=A=-+—HItFE

2007 2006
“EELF ZETREF
Notes HK$'000 HKS$'000
Ffat BT T BT
CASH FLOWS FROM REEBEEZ
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HERE
Profit before tax BR TR A 31,685 18,509
Adjustments for: KRG R IRFE
Finance costs BB 7 30,351 23,149
Interest income FEUA 5 (1,680) (1,094)
Dividend income from listed investments KB _EH#EE 2 BRBUA 5 (134) (355)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BRE REE
plant and equipment IHE ZH&?& 5 (8,871) (1,626)
Fair value (gains)/losses, net: ANHE (k) 518 F5E
Equity investments at fair value BAHEF ABRERZ
through profit or loss IR & 6 (8,964) 233
Derivative financial instruments PTESmIA B
~ forward currency contracts, net RHAEH) R 6 (1,582) 1,496
Gain on disposal of an equity investment &R AFET ABRE
at fair value through profit or loss ZIRARIG B W ms 6 - (356)
Depreciation e 6 70,463 70,100
Provision against inventories FEEE 6 1,830 132
Recognition of prepaid land RN T HEE
lease payments HRIA 6 1,004 761
Amortisation of software development B B B AN B
costs and trademarks PSEELES 37 6 348 287
Amortisation of deferred R AIE B B8 B AN B
development costs 6 7,396 4,455
Impairment of an available-for-sale A HE 2
investment HERE 19 - 11,110
121,846 126,801
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =& (gm R 36,938 (97,199)
(Increase)/decrease in accounts FEU R R e =4
and bills receivables () R 75,088 (49,606)
Increase in prepayments, deposits TBNRIE - Eek
and other receivables E th &L R IE I AN (22,4106) (9,747)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payables  FERTBREIE I, CEid>) (160,686) 169,278
Increases/(decrease) in accrued liabilites  FEET B & R EH bR
and other payables FRIBEM, CRd) (13,789) 12,616
Cash generated from operations KEEBEX RS 36,981 152,143
Interest received BEF S 1,680 1,094
Interest paid BERFE (28,479) (21,547)
Interest element on finance lease FEHERS
rental payments FEZ D (1,872) (1,602)
Hong Kong profits tax (paid)/refunded EREENEH 1,610 (168) =
Overseas taxes (paid)/refunded (Bf) /REEINEIE (241) 181 2
@)
Net cash inflow from operating activities & &EEBEEZ RS RNFE 9,679 130,101 %
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT LGB E€RER

Year ended 31 March 2007 BE-_ZTZ+F=A=-+—HItFE

Net cash inflow from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Dividends received from
listed investments

Purchase of items of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of an equity
investment at fair value through
profit or loss

Additions to intangible assets

Purchases of an available-for-sale
investment

Decrease in loans receivable

Deposits for acquisition of items of
property, plant and equipment

Net cash outflow from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase in trust receipt loans

New bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Capital element of finance lease
rental payments

Dividends paid

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances

REEBELEZ RS RAFRE

RETHEECHERE
B EHIRERS

BEYE BEK
RiEEE
HEDE  BER
RAETEE TS H0E
HERAFERT A
BERER 2 AR E
FRS 338
ﬁ%é%ﬁm
BEAHEEZRE

e E FOR D
Wi - M= &
REBER 2RE

RERSELZ
HE M FE

BMEETHELEZ
BaRE
EREMREFIE
B RITEN
BEBITER
MEHEHE RS E D

EAE

MEGDEEZRE
mA (i) F8
RERERBEEE

2@, (Bd) BE
FOHRehERRELIAR

RSBy FE

FRAESRERBELEEB

ReERERREEE
DM
Be METTEE

2007 2006
—BetE “BENF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ft =t BT T BT
9,679 130,101
5
134 355
34, (i) (62,965) (62,793)
34/iii) 539 2,280
8,832 7,285
16 (17,739) (8,505
- (607
188 188
(4,759) (31,449)
(75,770) (93,246)
33,284 58,829
135,257 160,000
(89,994) (234,198
(10,724) (10,565)
(9.529) (9,529)
58,294 (35,463)
(7,797) 1,392
99,971 98353
524 226
92,698 99,971
92,698 99,971
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BALANCE SHEET ¥ E&E %

31 March 2007 —EZE+F=A=+—H

2007 2006
—ZEELF —ETRF

Notes HK$'000 HKS'000

FifaE BT T BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries N NIEPNGEIL 18 251,547 221,068
Available-for-sale investment ARHEZRE 19 13,256 13,256
Total non-current assets FERBEERLE 264,803 234,324
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Cash and bank balances W MIRTTHETT 26 137 137
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAR
Accrued liabilities and other payables et B E R E AR FIA 9 8
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 128 129
Net assets BERLE 264,931 234,453
EQUITY s
Issued capital B BT 31 95,289 95,289
Reserves G 33(b) 160,113 129,635
Proposed final dividend FRREAIR B 2 9,529 9,529
Total equity A 264,931 234,453

Ling Siu Man, Simon Liu Hoi Keung, Gary
EDX ErR
Director Director
3 3

—00N #%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#5 3R E&Mist

31 March 2007 —ZEZF+F=A=+—H

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands. The registered office of the
Company is located at P.O. Box 309 GT, Ugland House, South
Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands,
British West Indies.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
subsidiaries are engaged in the design, manufacture and trading
of consumer electronic products and components and home
appliance products. There were no significant changes in the
nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Group is Success Forever Limited,
which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs®) (which
also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for buildings, derivative financial
instruments and certain investments, which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HKS”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2007. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The results of
subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition, being
the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All significant
intercompany transactions and balances within the Group are

eliminated on consolidation.

2.1

NEEHR

RNBEXERERRAAB—FKRFEHS
MK BRAA c AARZAMPEE
BEAIFRPO. Box 309 GT. Ugland House,
South Church Street, George Town, Grand
Islands, British West

Cayman, Cayman

Indies °

RRAREZEBRIREER - (HEBR AR
R WEREEHEEETERETH
RREBREM - FAN - AEBEEEER
M S AR

J"-/‘\

EERAAEERIER AR R KZE]
A AN EBE LRSS FMA I MSuccess

Forever Limited °

fm BLELE

HEMBHRERTIRIEE LS QG HEM
MEEHBHREER ( [HEMBREE
1) (FerREsestEl ( [FEe
TR ) kBRE) - HBEARETRA
REBRNBURPIRERE - WRESLK
AIEmE BT  TEERTARE
TRETIARFEFE - MBERRIAET
(B7m) 2% BRBEHAEIN - AR
ENHERIAETARE

REREEE

RAMBRREEARALENERAE

E_TTLF-A=T-HALFENTH
WK o AR DETHAREME THERZ
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#53R & Mist

31 March 2007 —EZE+F=A=+—H

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED 2.2 R RBBITERYHHRE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL ZERANTE
REPORTING STANDARDS
The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for N B AR RN S B 7S TR 3R B B R BR A A
the first time for the current year's financial statements. Except for THHIETM&E TN BB P IEREEL -
in certain cases, giving rise to new and revised accounting policies B UL TR IS A R A I R] A A AT
and additional disclosures, the adoption of these new and revised M2 T BURMEB NG FESN » R B LT
standards and interpretation has had no material effect on these SIS RT Y ZE Bl J 72 R 4 55 LL B T 3%
financial statements. BMEBATE
HKAS 21 Amendment Net Investment in a Foreign BRI ENE2I%  EERIMEER
Operation SCH| R E
HKAS 39 & HKFRS 4 Financial Guarantee Contracts RS ENEIR  HBEERAR
Amendments KBS HRE %A
F4FHAERT
HKAS 39 Amendment Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of A ERE3R  EHEEABRIZH
Forecast Intragroup Transactions SEH) RensEMast
HKAS 39 Amendment The Fair Value Option BREGEREIN D BEFERER
&iza]
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an a8 (ERm%RE ®BE-BETHESD
Arrangement contains a Lease 2EZEE) BIEHEE
—RRBE4R
The principal changes in accounting policies are as follows: BB E2EFHNT
(a) HKAS 21 — The Effects of Changes in (a) BEAREERE215H - IMNE
Foreign Exchange Rates ERXSBHTE
Upon the adoption of the HKAS 21 Amendment regarding BT BABSERNFE 2 FLE
a net investment in a foreign operation, all exchange ETEEE’Q&‘T%W%%E’U%&%“E’\]ﬂ?@i
differences arising from a monetary item that forms part % ERAREBEEBINECEFRE
of the Group’s net investment in a foreign operation are —HOMEKIBEELERNMEER
recognised in a separate component of equity in the ERIERER N EBEXI D EL
consolidated financial statements irrespective of the currency BYERERTER Tk EH¥IE
in which the monetary item is denominated. This change BUEMERIIE - & —Z2FHRN
has had no material impact on these financial statements as BT+ F=A=+—Hs—
at 31 March 2007 or 31 March 2006. T RNF=ZRA=+—HILOMBE®

REEATE -

—00N #%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#5 3R E&Mist

31 March 2007 —ZEZF+F=A=+—H

2.2 IMPACT OF NE\WW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continuep)

(b) HKAS 39 - Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement

(i)

(ii)

Amendment for financial guarantee
contracts

This amendment has revised the scope of HKAS 39 to
require financial guarantee contracts issued that are
not considered insurance contracts, to be recognised
initially at fair value and to be remeasured at the higher
of the amount determined in accordance with HKAS
37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets” and the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with HKAS 18 “Revenue”. The adoption of
this amendment has had no material impact on these

financial statements.

Amendment for the fair value option

This amendment has changed the definition of a
financial instrument classified as fair value through
profit or loss and has restricted the use of the option
to designate any financial asset or any financial liability
to be measured at fair value through the income
statement. The Group had not previously used this
option, and hence the amendment has had no effect

on the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#53R & Mist

31 March 2007 —EZE+F=A=+—H

2.2 IMPACT OF NE\WW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continuep)

(b) HKAS 39 - Financial Instruments:

()

Recognition and Measurement (continued)

(iiij Amendment for cash flow hedge
accounting of forecast intragroup
transactions

This amendment has revised HKAS 39 to permit the
foreign currency risk of a highly probable intragroup
forecast transaction to qualify as a hedged item in
a cash flow hedge, provided that the transaction is
denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity entering into that transaction
and that the foreign currency risk will affect the
consolidated income statement. As the Group
currently has no such transactions, the amendment
has had no effect on these financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 — Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease

The Group has adopted this interpretation as of 1 April
2006, which provides guidance in determining whether
arrangements contain a lease to which lease accounting
must be applied. The Group has reassessed all the relevant
arrangements and concluded that this interpretation has
had no material impact on these financial statements.
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Tonic Industries Holdings Limited 3R H & #ZER A R 2 &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#53R &Mzt

31 March 2007 —ZEZF+F=A=+—H

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

HKAS T Amendment Capital Disclosures

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury
Share Transactions

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession Arrangements

The HKAS 1 Amendment shall be applied for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2007. The revised standard wiill
affect the disclosures about qualitative information about the
Group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing capital;
guantitative data about what the Company regards as capital, and
compliance with any capital requirements and the consequences
of any non-compliance.

HKFRS 7 shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2007. The standard requires disclosures that enable
users of the financial statements to evaluate the significance of the
Group’s financial instruments and the nature and extent of risks
arising from those financial instruments.

HKFRS 8 shall be applied for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2009. The standard requires the disclosure of
information about the operating segments of the Group, the
products and services provided by the segments, the geographical
areas in which the Group operates, and revenues from the Group’s
major customers. This standard will supersede HKAS 14 “Segment
Reporting”.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#5 3R EMist

31 March 2007 —EZE+F=A=+—H

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET 23 EEMEBRERMNE BT

EFFECTIVE HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (continuep)

HKAS 23 (Revised), HK(IFRIC)-Int 8, HK(IFRIC)-Int 9, HK(IFRIC)-Int 10,
HK({IFRIC)-Int 11T and HK{IFRIC)-Int 12 shall be applied for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009, 1 May 2006, 1
June 2006, 1 November 2006, 1 March 2007 and 1 January 2008,
respectively.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far,
it has concluded that the adoption of the HKAS 1 Amendment,
HKFRS 7 and HKFERS 8 may result in new or amended disclosures.
The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact
of the other new and revised HKFRSs but is not yet in a position
to state whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have a
significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies the
Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain benefits
from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable.
The Company's interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.

Goodwill

Gooadwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets
acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed as at the
date of acquisition.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE @
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill previously eliminated against
consolidated retained profits

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA's Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 30 “Business Combinations” (“SSAP 307) in
2001, goodwill arising on acquisition was eliminated against
consolidated retained profits in the year of acquisition. On the
adoption of HKERS 3, such goodwill remains eliminated against
consolidated retained profits and is not recognised in the income
statement when all or part of the business to which the goodwill
relates is disposed of or when a cash-generating unit to which the
goodwill relates becomes impaired.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
Impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets and financial assets), the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated as
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-

generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement in
the period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset, unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there
is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than certain financial assets is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, however
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation),
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)  the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (i) has an interest in the
Group that gives it significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) has joint control over the Group;
(b)  the party is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or its holding company;

(c) the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (a) or (b);

(d)  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHHERE @
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in
the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use
of an item of property, plant and equipment, and where the cost
of the item can be measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised
as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair
value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying
amount. Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment
are dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the
total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual
asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the income
statement. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the
income statement to the extent of the deficit previously charged.
On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
transferred to retained profits as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of each
item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this

purpose are as follows:
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§ Buildings 49% on the straight-line basis EF VAB 805 4%

L; Leasehold improvements  10% to 25% on the reducing balance basis MAMERE  AEREEER 0%225%
é Furniture and fixtures 10% to 25% on the reducing balance basis RRREE VAR ER BB AR 1 0% 25%
é Equipment and tools 10% to 25% on the reducing balance basis FEATA LAE R ERBE IR 1 0% 2 25%
O Motor vehicles 30% on the reducing balance basis bz} VAR R BRER AR 30%

(,% Moulds 25% on the straight-line basis R PAEBRIEIR25%
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the income statement in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds

and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in  progress represents buildings, leasehold
improvements, and moulds under construction in the mainland
of the People's Republic of China (the "PRC" or "Mainland China’)
which are not yet ready for their intended use. Construction in
progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction during
the period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

Intangible assets

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
balance sheet date.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE @
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

Intangible assets (continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does

not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred product development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. They
are amortised using the straightline basis over the commercial
lives of the underlying products but not exceeding five years,
commencing from the date when the products are put into

commercial production.

Trademarks

Trademarks are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any impairment losses. They are amortised using the straight-line

basis over their estimated useful lives but not exceeding ten years.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value
of the minimum lease payments and recorded together with the
obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases are
included in property, plant and equipment and depreciated over
the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to the income
statement so as to provide a constant periodic rate of charge over
the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)

Leases (continued)

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straightline basis over the lease terms. Where
the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating leases,
are charged to the income statement on the straightline basis over
the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straightline
basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and
available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. When financial
assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value,
plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or
loss, directly attributable transaction costs. The Group determines
the classification of its financial assets after initial recognition and,
where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at
the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading. Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on investments held

for trading are recognised in the income statement.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes
fees that are an integral part of the effective interest rate and
transaction costs. Gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the loans and receivables are derecognised or

impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets
in unlisted equity securities that are designated as available for
sale or are not classified in any of the above categories. After initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value, with gains or losses recognised as a separate component of
equity until the investment is derecognised or until the investment
is determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss previously reported in equity is included in the income

statement.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such

securities are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised
financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market
bid prices at the close of business at the balance sheet date.
For investments where there is no active market, fair value is
determined using valuation techniques. Such techniques include
using recent arm'’s length market transactions; reference to the
current market value of another instrument which is substantially
the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing
models.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or through
the use of an allowance account. The amount of the impairment

loss is recognised in the income statement.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant,
and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If it is determined that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset,
whether significant or not, the asset is included in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group
is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is
or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective

assessment of impairment.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, In a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement, to
the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its
amortised cost at the reversal date.

In relation to accounts and bills receivables, a provision for
impairment is made when there is objective evidence (such as the
probability of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the
debtor) that the Group will not be able to collect all of the amounts
due under the original terms of an invoice. The carrying amount
of the receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are assessed

as uncollectible.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an
unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because
its fair value cannot be reliably measured has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not
reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in the income statement, is transferred
from equity to the income statement. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed through
the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised where:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

J the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in
full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards

of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement
that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset
and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/
or purchased option (including a cash-settled option or similar
provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset
that the Group may repurchase, except in the case of a written
put option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on
an asset measured at fair value, where the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of

the transferred asset and the option exercise price.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
(including interest-bearing loans and
borrowings)

Financial liabilities including accounts and other payables and
interest-pearing loans and borrowings are initially stated at fair value
less directly attributable transaction costs and are subseqguently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case

they are stated at cost.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation

process.

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are

recognised in the income statement.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the

liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income
statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

Derivative financial instruments and
hedging

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward
currency contracts to hedge its risks associated with foreign
currency fluctuations. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subseqguently remeasured at
fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is

positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on derivatives
that do not qualify for hedge accounting are taken directly to the
income statement.

The fair value of forward currency contracts is calculated by
reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts with

similar maturity profiles.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case
of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheet, cash and bank balances
comprise cash on hand and at banks, which are not restricted as
to use.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the balance sheet date of
the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it relates to
itemns that are recognised in the same or a different period directly
N equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

Income tax (continuea)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised except:

. where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects

neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously
unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each balance
sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or
the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a)  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided
that the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to
the degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective

control over the goods sold;

(b)  from the rendering of handling fee services, when the
services have been rendered;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(d) interest income, on an accrual pbasis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial assets; and

(e)  dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive

payment has been established.

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
In valuing equity-settled transactions, Nno account is taken of any
performance conditions, other than conditions linked to the price

of the shares of the Company (“market conditions”), if applicable.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)

Employee benefits (continuea)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the
date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the
award (the “vesting date”). The cumulative expense recognised
for equity-settled transactions at each balance sheet date until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
income statement for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market
condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether
or not the market condition is satisfied, provided that all other

performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification, which increases the total fair value of the share-based
payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee
as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However,
if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is
designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional

share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

EBEEF @

LR BEBZIZBIRS (#)
ERELR S MAEEB R, SRS E
HEER  EHBESSEEREDH B
(IRBEW]| ) 28 - ERERSZH
EFHE—GIRER - RESHEERIREE
HEERBEPNERY Y - k8
B RE A R A B 5 R SR B M
TAZ#A > KEM - BREKERD
Bsit AR £ - HRZRBIR
HRRFTRER Y BETHI L B3 o

RIERERBZRE  T2ERFX K
FEBMAREN SR MEREE - MEL
BT ZFRZB I RMIZRIEEEEE
B DR AERE - BUANAMARM
KRBT

HEREER S 2 FFRER  AIERR
EFS - BAMRFORBEER © BESh - (E1J
BTSRRIk ONRLHEZA
FEERRE  HHABTRAHRFEERA
FEEZEEEM -

it m A E RN - AIRRRE N E
35 A IR - TR st SRR RERR 2 P 2 A
BOEHERR  PRT - fed 45K o S AR B 13T 28
BIFTEA - BERIRH B IR E AR R
B - PP RESH R 520 R 242 a0 IR 22D
tERERT 275 (RRIRATL) BRE -

HMATERBEEZEEITE  RAESKR

—~00N %%



Tonic Industries Holdings Limited 3R H & #ZER A R 2 &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#53R & Mist

31 March 2007 —ZEZF+F=A=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 TESHHERE @
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuED)

Employee benefits (continuea)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in
respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only to
equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002 that had not
vested by I April 2005.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when
the employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting
fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentages of
their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE @

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conTtinuED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of gualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the balance
sheet, until they have been approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by
the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions are initially recorded using the functional currency
rates ruling at the date of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the balance
sheet date. All differences are taken to the income statement.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2.4 TESHBERE @
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueD)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at the
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date, and their income
statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are included in the exchange fluctuation reserve.
On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount
recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from those
involving estimations, which has the most significant effect on the

amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining whether
an asset is impaired or the event previously causing the asset
Impairment no longer exists, particularly in assessing: (1) whether
an event has occurred that may affect the asset value or such
event affecting the asset value has not been in existence; (2)
whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net present value

used in the impairment test.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of
items of property, plant and equipment, the Group has to
consider various factors, such as technical or commercial
obsolescence arising from changes or improvements in
production, or from a change in the market demand for
the product or service output of the asset, expected usage
of the asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care and
maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the
use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the asset
is based on the experience of the Group with similar assets
that are used in a similar way. Additional depreciation is
made if the estimated useful lives and/or the residual values
of items of property, plant and equipment are different from
previous estimation. Useful lives and residual values are
reviewed, at each financial year end date based on changes

INn circumstances.

Estimation of fair value of buildings

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market for similar buildings. In the absence of such
information, the Group considers information from a variety

of sources, including:

(a) by reference to independent valuations;

(b)  current prices in an active market for buildings of a
different nature, condition or location (or subject to
different leases or other contracts), adjusted to reflect
those differences;

(c)  recent prices of similar buildings on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that

occurred at those prices; and
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Estimation of fair value of buildings (continued)

(d)  discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms
of any existing lease and other contracts and (when
possible) by external evidence such as current market
prices for similar buildings in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount

and timing of the cash flows.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of
the fair value include those related to current market prices
for similar buildings in the same location and condition,
appropriate discount rates, expected future market prices
and future maintenance costs.

The carrying amount of buildings at 31 March 2007 was
HK$270,790,000 (2006: HKS243,492,000).

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying
value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax losses
at 31 March 2007 was HKS2,795,000 (2006: HKS3,117,000).
Further details are contained in note 30 to the financial
statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

(CONTINUED)

3. EXEHERGEE @

HEZTEEY @
(iii) EEBIE (&)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iii) Deferred tax (continued)
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On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress approved
the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (the "New
Corporate Income Tax Law’), which will become effective
from 1 January 2008. The New Corporate Income Tax Law
introduces a wide range of changes which include, but are
not limited to, the unification of the corporate income tax
(the "CIT") rate for domestic-invested and foreign-invested
enterprises at a rate of 25%. This change in the CIT rate will
directly offset the Group's effective tax rate prospectively
from 2008. According to HKAS 12 "Income taxes’, deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled. As a result, the change in
the CIT rate has had the following impact on the financial
position of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2007:
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AHEEih BEAEHREHHA
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FEELENUTHMBORRAZE :

Year ended
31 March 2007
BE_ZZtE=A=1+—HLEE

HKS'000

BT T

Decrease: asset revaluation reserve for buildings B BF 2 BESEMAHE (15,253)
Increase: deferred tax liabilities Eon - RERIBEEE 15,253

At the date of approval of these financial statements, detailed
implementation and administrative requirements relating
to the New Corporate Income Tax Law have yet to be
announced. These detailed requirements include regulations
concerning the computation of taxable income, as well
as specific preferential tax treatments and their related
transitional provisions. The Group will further evaluate the
impact on its operating results and financial positions of
future periods as more detailed requirements are issued.
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two segment formats:
(i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by business segment;
and (i) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by geographical

segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed

4. DEHEFR

RRARZMESERAZHRYHEH :
(AEXBDEREEDHBRERLE &
(i) AR DI RIR B D EPIREEZE -

AEENZERGRERGIEE RATRHE

separately according to the nature of their operations and the MEM: BYABKER AEBEZEE

products they provide. Each of the Group’s business segments
represents a strategic business unit that offers products which
are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of

BRBIH R —ERBSMEEEEL - iRt
FE A 2 B [ B K% BRI 1O [ 3 £ L b SE 75
DERR o FH D ER 2 FEBRAnT

the other business segments. Summary details of the business

segments are as follows:

(a)  the electronic products and components segment consists @) BEFEREZHSIBER - ®iE

of the design, manufacture and sale of audio and video

products and components;

(b)  the home appliance products segment consists of the (b)
manufacture and sale of home appliance products; and

(c) the corporate segment comprises corporate income and (c)

expense items.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues and
results are attributed to the segments based on the location of the
customers, and assets are attributed to the segments based on the

location of the assets.

There were no intersegment sales and transfers during the year

(2006: Nil).
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conminueD 4. FHER @
(a) Business segments (a) EEBES
The following tables present revenue, profit and certain TREVAREREBEHLRNEE-Z
asset, liability and expenditure information of the Group's THFER_TFERNF=ZA=+—HIt
business segments for the years ended 31 March 2007 and FEMWA B EETEE - AfF
2006. RFAXEER
Group NEE
Electronic products Home
and components appliance products Corporate Consolidated
ETERREH FERRER i &a

2007 006 2007 006 2007 006 2007 2006
CERLE CTTAF CERLE CTTAF CERtE CTTNF CEMtE DITNF
HK$'000  HKSO0D  HK$'000  HKS00D  HK§'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000
AMTn BNTT A%Tn ANTT  ABTR  ARTT  A%TR  ARTR

Segment revenue: AEEA

Sales to external customers BETHREE 2316557 2141160 282,857 251059 - - 2599414 2392219

Other seqment revenue EAHRA 3,604 5346 43 751 - - 3,647 6097

Total et 2,320,161 2146506 282,900 251810 - - 2,603,061 2398316
Segment results SR 33919 48852 9,047 5070 (543) (53 42423 53390
Interest income and FIEMAR

unallocated income N 19,649 3431
Unallocated expenses AAER (36) (15163
Finance costs BENK (30,351) (23149
Profit before tax BHANER 31,685 18,509
Tax ] (7,673 101
Profit for the year EERN 24012 18510
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuep) 4. DEER @
(a) Business segments (Continued) (a) REKED 80
Group REE
Electronic products Home
and components appliance products Corporate Consolidated
ETERREH FEERER A &e
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
ZERLE CET5F CERLE CTTSE CERtE ST CBBtE CERE
HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000 HK$'000  HKS000 HK$'000  HKS'000
BBTn AETr EMTn AETr  BMTn  A%Tr  BMTn BETR
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Segment assets PEEE 1,259,510 1280620 103,860 113948 - - 1,363,370 1394568
Unallocated assets ANREE 120,213 126,085
Total assets EEE 1,483,583 1520653
Segment liabilites HHER 292,782 458008 61475 01427 9 7 354266 519442
Unallocated liabilites ANEARE 587,947 493145
Total liabilities eaf 942,213 1012587
Other segment information: R4 H&H :
Depreciation and amortisation FERBH 70706 64779 1501 10,063 - - 78207 74842
Surplus on revaluation ERRNERRER
recognised directly in equity LEHER 24,815 - 110 - - - 24925 -
Impairment losses recognised RN CaEiES
in the income statement BRZAESE - - - - - IL110 - 11110
Provision/(write-back of provision) ~ F& s/ (B
against inventories #E) 1,630 267 200 (135 - - 1,830 132
Capital expenditure AREx 82,958 99365 3751 15520 - - 86709 114885
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conrinuep) 4, PEHER @
(b) Geographical segments (b) ZiEESD

The following table presents revenue and certain asset
and expenditure information for the Group’s geographical
segments for the years ended 31 March 2007 and 2006.

TREIWAKEEHE T LtFR
TERF=A=+—HIEFEHRA
FETEERATNER -

Group REH
Asia Pacific
Americas Europe countries Others Consolidated
B3l M EAEER Aft G&
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
ZERLE CTTNE DBRLE CETSF CBBLE C25F CRRLE CTT0E DERLE CRE
HK§000  HKS000 HK§'000  HKS000 HK$'000  HKSO000 HK$'000  HKSO0O HK$'000  HKSO00
BETR BRI BBTn BATT AW B¥Tn EMTR BNTn B%Tn ERTr
Segment revenue: DHHA:
Sales to extemal customers & TINREP 1648820 991863 520,054 998780 409416 347192 21,124 54384 2599414 12392219
Other segment Bt A &R :
information:
Seqment assels ABEE
- Hong Kong —&h 401,745 486632
- ainand China ~HE 1,081,838 1034021
Totl 3t 1483583 1520653
Capial expendiure BARR
- Hong Kong -& 5584 2583
- Mainiand China il 81,125 112302
Totl it 86,709 114885
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S
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5. WA~ A K iz
GAINS
Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the WATNERER 2 S35 - JHIEYHEMA
invoiced value of goods sold, net of discounts and returns, after SEARRENEARS%E - HBRITHOR
elimination of all significant intra-group transactions. REMNEHEMERE -
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: WA~ B A RIS ST T ¢
2007 2006
—EELF ZETREF
HK$'000 HKS'000
BETT BT
Revenue LON
Manufacture and sale of electronic BUENMIHE BT Em
products and components e 2,316,557 2,141,160
Manufacture and sale of home U5 N HE REEE 2R EE
appliance products 282,857 251,059
2,599,414 2,392,219

Other income and gains E Al A R Wz
Handling fee income FHEBPA 228 1,737
Bank interest income RITHBHA 1,680 1,094
Dividend income from listed investments 3R E L EER S A 134 355
Foreign exchange differences, net EREZRFE 544 61
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME - BER

plant and equipment R AHIE B B dEs 8,871 1,626
Others Hith 2,875 3517

14,332 8,390

—00N %



Tonic Industries Holdings Limited R H & 2% ZER A R 2 &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#5 3R E&Mist

31 March 2007 —ZEZE+F=A=+—H

AL adg
6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. PFR®ADE A
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AREFRNBRFEINEFNEHNE, (GtA) T
(crediting): BB I8 -
2007 2006
—EELF ZEER
Notes HK$'000 HKS'000
lirza BYTT BT
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKAE 2,474,661 2.268,188
Provision against inventories FERE 1,830 132
Fair value (gains)/losses on derivative PTHEERTA
financial instruments — forward —BEEIEH
currency contracts, net NFE W)
BB 55 25 (1,582) 1,496
Cost of sales FHE AR 2,474,909 2,269,816
Depreciation 3 i 14 70,463 70,100
Amortisation of software development P AR AN B
costs and trademarks* K IR S 16 348 287
Recognition of prepaid land HESRTE T3
lease payments MEHE 15 1,004 761
Research and development costs: Wi5E R PR
Deferred development costs amortised*  EEFZE A /6 7,396 4,455
Current year expenditure REFFRX 1,090 1,280
8,486 5,735
Minimum lease payments under operating 3 RIEFEEF LY
leases on land and buildings ZRIEHE 3,999 4,029
Auditors’ remuneration 1% SR B <& 1,085 905
Employee benefits expense (including BIRAMAX (B
directors’ remuneration — note 8): E=ME - Mits)
Wages and salaries IENF® 150,282 126,496
Pension scheme contributions FE N TN 2,326 2,344
Less: Forfeited contributions** W EER R~ - (39)
Net pension scheme contributions RINFHEMERUFE 2,326 2,305
152,608 128,801
Fair value (gains)/losses on equity BAHE ARk
investments at fair value through B E 72 A FE
profit or loss (Mak) B8 (8,964) 233
> Gain on disposal of an equity investment  H&Z A FEFF AR R
2 at fair value through profit or loss 2RI B W g - (356)
S Gross and net rental income from land T REFHEE
_C? and buildings WAERE R FE (1,788) (84)
o
é & The amortisation of software development costs and trademarks, and & NSRRI A Y - RIS
5 deferred development costs for the year are included in “Selling and RIER R ANE D Bt AGZE W R 2
distribution costs” and “Cost of sales”, respectively, on the face of the [$HERDHEKRA] & [$HEKAEK] -
(,% consolidated income statement.
ok As at 31 March 2007, the Group had no forfeited contributions available o —B - KEBEWE
76 to offset its future employers’ contributions (2006: Nil). (F) AMEARE




Tonic Industries Holdings Limited =R 71 B 2R G R 2 A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#53R & Mist

31 March 2007 —EZE+F=A=+—H

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BERAS
2007 2006
—ERLF —EERE
HK$°'000 HKS'000
BT BET T
Interest on: FTHNEE T2 FE
Bank loans and facilities wholly ARAFAEZHERD
repayable within five years RITERREE 28,479 21,547
Finance leases BMEHE 1,872 1,602
30,351 23,149
8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION 8. EXEM<E
Directors’” remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the AREEEENWLS BB EmiRA
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange ( [Em#RAI] ) RAFHEGIE 161188
(the “Listing Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies TOO -

Ordinance, is as follows:

2007 2006

S —2ENE

HK$°'000 HKS'000

BET T BT T

Fees ik 971 655
Other emoluments: H i

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ #r& * 22BL R B YEF 11,595 11,196

Commission e 1,828 1,694

Pension scheme contributions RIREFTEIER 580 562

14,003 13,452

14,974 14,107

—~00N %%
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Tonic Industries Holdings Limited 3R H & 2% ZER A R A &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#53R & Mist

31 March 2007 —EZE+F=A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

(CONTINUED)

(a)

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during

the year were as follows:

Pang Hon Chung ZER
Cheng Tsang Wai EoE
Chung Hing Wah, Paul B
Ho Fook Hong, Ferdinand* fal 8 % *

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2006: Nil).

* resigned as a director on 1 April 2006

BEEMWE @

(a) BYKHITES

FAXNFPHEIUFATERTZES
W

2007 2006
—BTtF ZETRF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEET T
107 91

106 88

70 -

- 88

283 267

FAALBENTELIFATEFTZHMH
B (ZZZTRF &) -

* RIZZXRFNA—BHEES



Tonic Industries Holdings Limited = 71 B 2 &k A R 2 A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#53R & Mist

31 March 2007 —EZE+F=A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

(CONTINUED)

(b) Executive directors and a hon-executive

director

2007
—E2L
Executive directors:
Ling Siu Man, Simon
Liu Hoi Keung, Gary
Lee Ka Yue, Peter
Wong Ki Cheung
Li Fung Ching, Catherine
Au Wai Man
Lam Kwai Wah

Non-executive director:
Wong Wai Kwong, David

8. EEME w

(b) BIITESRIHITES

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind Commission contributions remuneration
e 2R BiRE
ok REVER e sHEIfH HEe
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT BT BT BT BT
WTES :
=LY - 3,888 = 194 4,082
EF5% 300 1,689 - 99 2,088
FA - - = = -
BHE = 1,944 = 97 2,041
ZEE = 1,944 = 97 2,041
BEER = 1,620 - 8l 1,701
W 300 510 1,828 12 2,650
600 11,595 1,828 580 14,603
FHTES :
E=EN 88 = = = 88
688 11,595 1,828 580 14,691

—00N #



Tonic Industries Holdings Limited 3R H & 2% ZER A R A &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#53R & Mist

31 March 2007 —EZE+F=A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION 8. EEM= w
(CONTINUED)
(b) Executive directors and a non-executive (b) BITESRIFHITESE @)
director (continued)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees inkind Commission contributions remuneration
2 A= 4 BiHRE
e RENEF e st e
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
AETT HBETT BB AETT BT
2006
TR
Executive directors: MITES :
Ling Siu Man, Simon BN = 3,888 = 194 4,082
Liu Hoi Keung, Gary B8 - 1,620 - 8l 1,701
Lee Ka Yue, Peter =) - - - - -
Wong Ki Cheung BEHE - 1,944 ~ 97 2,041
Li Fung Ching, Catherine ZEE = 1,944 = 97 2,041
Au Wai Man RER - 1,620 - 8l 1,701
Lam Kwai Wah MEEEE 300 180 1,694 12 2,186
300 11,196 1,694 562 13,752
Non-executive director: FHTES :
Wong Wai Kwong, David =Ex 88 = = = 83
388 11,196 1,694 562 13,840
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or FN - SEFWEELHNEXREREE
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2006: Nil). MMEZEE (ZTTRF &) o

3OO noday jenuuy
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Tonic Industries Holdings Limited = 71 B 2 &k A R 2 A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#53R & Mist

31 March 2007 —EZE+F=A=+—H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. EIlVEREHEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included five
(2006: four) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in
note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the remaining non-

director, highest paid employee for the year were as follows:

e RMEEYNE
RIS HK

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Pension scheme contributions

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose

remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

HK$2,000,001 to HKS$2,500,000 2,000,001 &L E 2,500,000/ 7T

R AfuR=SHFEEEERV (ZFF
NE O BEF - AERSMEHIEE
REXHES - FA - R T RSFHIFES
BREZMEFBEIILT

Group

REHE
2007 2006
—BELF —BEAE
HK$°000 HKS'000
BT T BT
- 2,000
- S
- 2012

N FATHEZ RS FEERER
BT :

Number of employees

EE%E
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF

—~00N %
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Tonic Industries Holdings Limited R H & 2% ZER A R 2 &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#5 3R E&Mist

31 March 2007 —ZEZE+F=A=+—H

10. TAX 10.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5%
(2006: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,

interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Group: AEE
Current — Hong Kong BH-F8
Charge for the year AEEER
Qverprovision in prior years AR E Z 5T 1R
Current - Elsewhere EH — H b=
Charge for the year REEZH
Deferred (note 30) EIE (Hiat30)
Tax charge/(credit) for the year FEMBLER/ (FEER)

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit before tax using
the statutory rates for the countries in which the Company, and its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax charge/(credit) at the effective
tax rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the statutory
tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are as follows:

BiIE

BB RGBS BT RAF RN E SRR Z
s R B FIABLE 1 7.5% (ZBBX
£ 17.5%) FHR o RREMME 2 R
B FI BB T R 5 7 SR A 2 7 e
R2WITED - R RARR R RS
HRBEE -

2007 2006
—BRtF e i
HK$'000 HK$"000
BT T BT
2,176 1,528
(303) (751)
1,637 1,319
4,163 (2,197)
7,673 (101)

ERRBRAERNRAAR A REKER
AFFEBR ZREB R E 2 A hE
RERBEAEHERR, (BE2) <
AE - ARERBE (BDEERE) BE
BB R Z AT



Tonic Industries Holdings Limited =R 71 B 2R G R 2 A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#53R & Mist

31 March 2007 —EZE+F=A=+—H

10. TAX (continueD)

10. B8 @)

Group KEE
2007 2006
“BELE ZEERE
HK$'000 % HKS'000 %
BRI BETT

Profit before tax B HADER] 31,685 18,509
Tax at the statutory tax rate BRI E 2 5,545 17.5 3239 175
Higher/(lower] tax rate for HiBlR 2

other countries Ba/ (BE) Bk (84) (0.3) 346 19
Loss/[profit) not subject to tax,  ERBERMBE

due to concession EiA - Vabvi)) 401 13 (2795] (151]
Adjustments in respect of sLB AR

current tax of SR E

previous periods fEitiAE (303) (0.9) (751} (41
Income not subject to tax HERBIA 11,936) (6.1) (1728 93
Expenses not deductible for tax ATt 2,293 1.2 4986 269
Tax losses utilised from NEHHEDA

previous periods ZIBER (1,227 (3.9) (1,386] (75
Tax losses not recognised AERZBERR 3,713 1.7 383 21
Deferred tax notrecognised,  BHBEEM

due to concession AERZERHE (536) (1.7) (2794] (15.1)
Others Hih (193 (0.6) 399 22
Tax charge/|credit] at the BRESEERHZHE

Group's effective rate HEEER/ (FEER) 7,673 24.2 (101 (05

11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 11. R EZEEE AEGEH

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the AABIZHBRAPBEEHE ST LF
ZA=+T—RHIEFEXRRARAFEE AR
h4R &R A B4 140,007,000 7T (=
TERNEF  BI811,092,00087m) (Mlat
33(b)) -

Company for the year ended 31 March 2007 includes a profit of
HKS$40,007,000 (2006: loss of HKS11,092,000) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company (note
33(b)).

—00N #%



Tonic Industries Holdings Limited R H & 2% ZER A R 2 &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#5 3R E&Mist

31 March 2007 —ZEZE+F=A=+—H

12. DIVIDEND 12. B2
2007 2006
—EZT+EF —EERF
HK$°000 HKS'000
BT T BT TT
Proposed final — HK1 cent FHR AR BAAR B — T AR A AR 1 L
(2006: HK1 cent) per ordinary share (= 532*@ S 9,529 9,529
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval NEEF R AR EBE AN TIRRERE
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general EEERRE AR -
meeting.
13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. RRIEEREREARLE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY IR 2 K
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based on FREKRAFNTIIERNEE NN B L@
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of KFAE AEGERN 24,012,000/ (=&
the Company of HK$24,012,000 (2006: HKS18,610,000) and the ZTNE 1 18,610,00087T) RAFEED B
952,889,962 (2006: 952,889,962) ordinary shares in issue during 1TEmIZR952,.889,96208 (ZEE/N4F
the year. 952,889,962/%) &
Diluted earnings per share amounts for the years ended 31 March HREHE _EELFR_TEEF=A=
2007 and 2006 have not been disclosed, as the share options +—BIEFEERATENERESEBS
outstanding during these years had an anti-dilutive effect on the ENEREREBTNARESER WL E
basic earnings per share for these years. WEZEFE 2 EREERR

—JIOOD 1oday jenuuy
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Tonic Industries Holdings Limited =R 71 B 2R G R 2 A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#53R & Mist

31 March 2007 —EZE+F=A=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - MEREE

Group NEH
Leasehold  Furniture
Construction ~ improve- and Equipment Motor
Buildings in progress ments  fixtures andtools  vehicles  Moulds Total
HE b
BT HRIR WEEE  REE RBRIE RE BE @zt
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
RETT B¥Tn A%Tr B¥%Trn A%Tr BBt BETr A%t
31 March 2007 “E2E2tE-f=1-H
At 31 March 2006 and R-FENE=A=T-RK
at | April 2006; “EEEMA-A
Cost or valuation AL (A 253483 89192 103910 31445 426850 9484 173825 1088189
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (9991 - [49.091)  (23983) (226809) (7722 (137373 (455069
Net carmying amount REFE 3492 89192 4719 7462 200041 1762 36452 633120
At T April 2006, net of RIZZNENA-A
accumulated depreciation ENBRZHE 3492 89192 4719 7462 200,041 1762 3452 633120
Additions AE - 15420 2769 5801 53411 1,554 16210 95225
Disposals e - - 9] (29) (109 (95] (268] (510]
Surplus on revaluation SRR 24925 = - = - = - 495
Depreciation provided ERNREINE
during the year (10709 - (8205)  [2268)  (29038) (676)  (19567) (70,463
Transfers £z - (4.108) 800 - - - 3308 -
Exchange realignment 8% 13,082 5530 2101 115 1,107 18 - 21933
At 31 March 2007, net of RIERLE=A=1-H"
accumulated depreciation B 2GHTE 270790 106034 52175 11,081 225412 2563 36195 704250
At 31 March 2007: RZFELE=A=1-F:
Cost or valuation AR hE 270790 106034 111,191 37521 482357 10942 172795 1,191,636
Accumulated depreciation ZithE - - [59016) (26446 (256945)  [8379) (136600) (487,386
Net carmying amount REFE 270790 106034 52175 11081 225412 253 36,195 704250
ﬁ
- H
Analysis of cost or valuation: RAEEAN : 9
At cost BRAE - 106034 111,19] 37521 482357 10942 172795 920846 o)
At 31 March 2007 valuation RZZEE+E=A=1-H O
A 270790 = = - = = -
200790 106034 111,191 37521 482357 10942 172795 1,191,636
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Tonic Industries Holdings Limited R H & 2% ZER A R 2 &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#5 3R E&Mist

31 March 2007 —ZEZE+F=A=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

Group

31 March 2006

At 1 April 2005;
Cost or valuation

Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 1 April 2005, net of
accumulated depreciation
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation provided during the year

Exchange realignment

At 31 March 2006, net of
accumulated depreciation

At 31 March 2006:
Cost or valuation
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

Analysis of cost or valuation:
At cost
At 31 March 2005 valuation

14. % - BERSZRE @

REHE
Leasehold  Furniture
Construction  improve- and Equipment Motor
Buildings in progress ments  fixtures andtools  vehicles  Moulds Total
g B
BT HEIR H¥EE  REE RBERIA RE Ba @t
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
A8t A%Tr BT BETn AT AT A%Tr BT
RZEExE=A=1-H
“ZTRENA-H:
AL h(E 242506 56984 100155 29705 414791 1145 166070 1021661
ZifinE - - (39922 (22329) (201,136)  (9045] (120578]  (393010)
FEFE 242506 5698 60233 7376 213655 2405 45492 628651
RZZTREMA-A
BHRZHITE 242506 56984 60233 7376 213655 2405 45492 628651
NE 7893 31099 3174 1994 16,099 - 16,387 76,646
e - - 2] (49 (856 (200 (5991 (6918
ERRBZNE (9991 - (8890  (1872]  (29270) (625)  [19452) (70,100}
ERAE 3084 1,109 204 3 413 2 16 4841
REEAE=A=1—H"
BHRZHIE 243492 89,192 54719 7462 200041 1762 36452 633,120
RZZEAE=A=1-H
KA HE 253483 89192 103910 31445 426,850 9484 173825 1088189
Zitihe (9991] - [49.091)  (3983) (226809) (7722 (137373 (455069
REFE 243492 89,192 54719 7462 200041 1762 36452 633,120
AR EEAT :
BAAE 7893 89192 103910 31445 426,85 9484 173825 842599
R-ZFZR¥=A=1-H
A 245,590 - - - - - - 24559
253483 89192 103910 31445 426850 9484 173825 1,088,189




Tonic Industries Holdings Limited =R 71 B 2R G R 2 A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#53R & Mist

31 March 2007 —EZE+F=A=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BENRSE @

(CONTINUED)

The Group'’s buildings were held under the following lease terms:

AREEBRFRIATHAEA

Hong Kong Mainland China Total
BB 2 et
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000
BT BB TT BB TT

At valuation: RAH(E
Held under long term leases REREABROFE 290 = 290
Held under medium term leases RPHANRE 9910 260,590 270,500
10,200 260,590 270,790

The Group’s buildings were revalued at 31 March 2007 by Sallmanns
(Far East) Limited, an independent firm of professionally gualified
valuers, on an open market, existing use basis at HK$270,790,000.
A revaluation surplus of HKS$24,925,000, resulting from the above
valuations, have been credited to the asset revaluation reserve.

Had the whole class of the Group’s buildings been carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation, their carrying amounts would
have been included in the financial statements at approximately
HKS 169,150,000 (2006: HKS 172,464,000).

Included in the total amount of equipment and tools at 31 March
2007 were assets held under finance leases with a net book value
of HKS41,324,000 (2006: HKS46,773,000).

As detailed in note 34(ii), deposits for acquisition of items of property,
plant and equipment of HKS31,014,000 (2006: HKS1,715,000)
were utilised as part of the considerations paid for the purchases of
items of property, plant and equipment during the year.

AREBEWEFY R B EEAEMAM

(BR) BRAFINR=_ZEZELF=A
=t+—HRAHAMBLETEGA
270,790,000 7T - B Ll EEMELEZ
E{HAFR24,925 0008 LEFABEER
a1 o

fis) 25 55 B BT B FA R A& F IR oK AN R R &t
MEAR RAZEEEZREAEEIR
#9169,150,00008 7L (ZTERF -
172,464,000/7T) & AR #HREK

R_ETLF=A=+—HHNRERTIAR
EEE B IEEBRE R E 41,324,000 7T (=
DTN ¢ 46,773,000870) MEERE
Eo

WAHEE%

ZIDMTI% i BT Eeil - BRI - BE

REEEMEI£31,014,0008T (=&
?/\E 1,715,000/ 7m) BREZNE
NBEZEWE  BEKXEEENITS
RIE -

—~00N %%



Tonic Industries Holdings Limited 3R H & 2% ZER A R A &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#53R & Mist

31 March 2007 —EZE+F=A=+—H

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. L fHEF

Group NEH

2007 2006
—2ELF ZEZER

HK$°000 HKS'000
BT T BT
Carrying amount at 1 April RIA—RZERAEE 44,798 45,369
Recognised during the year F AR (1,004) (761)
Exchange realignment b 5, A R 1,365 190
Carrying amount at 31 March REA=+—BZKREE 45,159 44,798
Current portion mENER D (1,004) (9,521)
Non-current portion e ENEL D 44,155 35,277

AEBEZHE L TIRATHORFE :

The Group’s leasehold lands were held under the following lease

terms:
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
B HE st
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
BB BT BT
Held under long term leases BEBHEOSE 2,073 = 2,073
Held under medium term leases RO BBORE 15613 27,473 43,086
17,686 27,473 45,159
At 31 March 2007, the Group has been applying for land use right RZZEZE+F=A=+—H &*&5H

—ERETRPABECHEHE L EAF
WEAESD ZSITHZEEFES
HAE16,231,0008L (ZETNF -
15,716,00078) °

certificates in respect of certain of the Group’s leasehold lands in
Mainland China. These leasehold lands had an aggregate net book
value of approximately HKS 16,231,000 (2006: HKS 15,7 16,000).

3OO noday jenuuy
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Tonic Industries Holdings Limited = 71 B 2 &k A R 2 A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#53R & Mist

31 March 2007 —EZE+F=A=+—H

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B EE
Group NEH
Software Deferred
development development
costs Trademarks costs Total
B4 BT
BREA e B @it
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT BETT BT BETT
31 March 2007 “ERLE
=ZA=t+-H
Cost at 1 April 2006, net of e
accumulated amortisation —BZRA
[RENGES 284 1,116 15,833 17,233
Additions AE 426 143 17,170 17,739
Amortisation provided FREHEE
during the year (79) (269) (7.396) (7.744)
At 31 March 2007 RZIZTLF
=A=1+—H 631 990 25,607 27,228
At 31 March 2007: RZZTLEF
=A=t+-AR
Cost A 742 2,768 49,165 52675
Accumulated amortisation 25T (111 (1,778) (23,558 (25,447
Net carrying amount REHE 631 990 25,607 27,228
31 March 2006 e NS
=R=1+—H
Cost at 1 April 2005, net of RZZZRFMA
accumulated amortisation —BZRA
EEiliG: 5 - 1,254 12,216 13470
Additions RE 316 117 8072 8505
Amortisation provided FREHEARE
during the year (32) (255) (4,455) (4,742)
At 31 March 2006 RZZTRE
ZA=1+—H 284 1,116 15,833 17,233
At 31 March 2006; RZBTRE ﬁ
=A=1+—-H: =
Cost TS 316 2625 31,995 3493% 2
Accumulated amortisation 25T (32) (1,509) (16,162 n7703 O
(@)
Net carrying amount EEFE 284 1,116 15,833 17,233 7




Tonic Industries Holdings Limited R H & 2% ZER A R 2 &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#5 3R E&Mist

31 March 2007 —ZEZE+F=A=+—H

17. GOODWILL 17. B8

As detailed in note 2.4 to the financial statements, the Group SN SRR 2 4R - ANEEEA
applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 that permitted 7 7 B 765 e o 25 R 55 3 5% 0 8 15 63T
gooawill in respect of business combinations which occurred AR ZZEE—FRINEBE HEEDN
prior to 2001, to remain eliminated against consolidated retained EEEERRES R m A E 5 o

profits.

The amount of goodwill remaining in the consolidated retained RZETLF=A=+—H ZFTZ—F
profits, arising from the acquisition of a subsidiary prior to 1 April M A — B Z A B g — M A R AT E £
2001, was HK$2,000 as at 31 March 2007 (2006: HKS$2,000). WHEE R A RB M ENEEREA

2,000/87C (ZZTZ/NE ¢ 2,00087T) °

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. Rt E 1 Al =
Company
AATF

2007 2006
—EELHF ZETRF
HK$'000 HKS'000
BET T BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost Ik ETRAR D MK ANE 58,812 58,812
Due from subsidiaries B A RIR K 192,735 162,256
251,547 221,068
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and MiEB A al R RAEERTHEKIR - ¢ 8 Rl &
have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying amounts of the EEERE - fIBARRRZ EEERRL

amounts due from subsidiaries approximate to their fair values. NERE °

—JIOOD 1oday jenuuy
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Tonic Industries Holdings Limited =R 71 B 2R G R 2 A

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#53R & Mist

31 March 2007 —EZE+F=A=+—H

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES [continuep) 18. A B A RIS @

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows: MEBARGESMT -
Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued/ of equity
registration registered attributable Principal
Name and operations paid-up capital to the Company activities
EEalio A BT /M A DR FAE
AL BRREEME AERAEE REBDL FEXER
Direct Indirect
B GFE
Agility Investments British Virgin Islands USS1 100 = Investment holding
Limited REBRAHS E REER
Dongguan Gold Beam Mainland China HK$23,310,540 = 100 Manufacture of
Electronics Co., Ltd.# H 23,310,540787C electronic
REEHRET components and
ERARN home appliance
products
BEETEMR
REBRER
Dongguan Tonic Mainland China HKS$63,543,484 = 100 Manufacture of
Electronics Co., Ltd. # H 63,543,484 T electronic
RERNET products
BRREH SLEE T EM
Dongguan Xin Lian Digital Mainland China HK$9,000,000 = 100 Manufacture of
Technology Co., Ltd. # H 9,000,000/ 7T electronic
RSB RIR products
BRAEH SUEEFEm
Gold Beam Developments Hong Kong HKS2 100 = Trading and
Limited B8 28T manufacture
EHRERARAT of components
BERBETH
Panatone Licensing British Virgin Islands USST = 100 Holding of patents
Limited HBELES 125 HEEE L
Tonic Appliances Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100 = Trading of home C%
RNXBEEERADA BB 28T appliance O
products 7
BEREESREM
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31 March 2007 —ZEZE+F=A=+—H

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES [continuep) 18. A B A RIS w

Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued/ of equity
registration registered attributable Principal
Name and operations paid-up capital to the Company activities
ML, BT M A DR FAE
AL BEREEME AR RAHEE REBD L TEXK
Direct Indirect
H# GFE:
Tonic Digital Hong Kong HKS 100 = 100 Trading of digital
Products Limited* BB 10078 7T products
ROBBERBR AR BEBHGER
Tonic DVB British uss0.01 = 100 Trading of electronic
Marketing Limited Virgin Islands/ 0.012E7T products
Mainland China ERETEmM
RBELEE/
F
Tonic Electronics British Virgin Islands HKS 1 100 = Investment holding
(B.V.I.) Limited REBRLHS 1787T REER
Tonic Electronics Limited Hong Kong Ordinary = 100 Trading and
ROEFAERAA 5 HKS$200 manufacture
Non-voting of electronic
Deferred** products
HK$300,000 BERSUE
LAk 2007% 7T EfEM
ERRE
BT
300,00077T
Tonic Enterprises Limited  British Virgin Islands ussi = 100 Holding of patents
KERLES I1R7T RERR
Tonic International Limited British HKS0.01 = 100 Provision of quality
g Virgin Islands/ 0.01787T control services
5 Mainland China RUEMEEI R
kS KBELHE,/
S P EY
Cz) Tonic Investment British Virgin Islands HK$0.01 = 100 Investment holding
? (BV1) Limited EBRLEHE 0.0177T REER
92 Tonic Marketing Limited ~ British Virgin Islands Uss0.01 = 100 Investment holding

KERLES 0.01%7T REZR
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES [continuep) 18. A B A RIS @

Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued/ of equity
registration registered attributable Principal
Name and operations paid-up capital to the Company activities
ML, B 81T HEf ARG
NE BRREELE AERAHEE REB DL FTEXK
Direct Indirect
B GFE
Tonic Technology Mainland China RMB15,400,000 = 100 Research and
(Shenzhen) Ltd. # H 15,400,000 A R ¥& development and
AR RN trading of
BRAFH electronic
products
MR RBELEER
EFEm
Tonic Technology Limited Hong Kong HK$ 10,000 100 = Investment holding,
RAORRBERAA B 10,0007 7T manufacture
and trading of
electronic products
and components
REER - 8ER
BEESEFEMKR
T
Tonic Trading Hong Kong HKS 100 = 100 Trading of
Development Limited B 10078 7T electronic products
ROHEERERAF and components
BEEBTERK
T
Tonic Venture Hong Kong HK$ 1,000,000 = 100 Investment holding
Capital Limited B 1,000,000787T REER
ROBIEHREBERAR
TA Limited Hong Kong HK$ 10,000 = 100 Trading of home
BB 10,000/ 7T appliance
products
BEREEREM
BRI Mainland China RMB500,000 - 100 Manufacture of
BB AT H 500,000 A R #& electronic
components E
SUEETEmM 2
O
7
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#5 3R E&Mist

31 March 2007 —ZEZE+F=A=+—H

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continueD)

*

it

it

Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other Ernst & Young
International member firms

Wholly-foreign-owned enterprises

The non-voting deferred shares carrying the right to one-half of
the profits after the holders of the ordinary shares have received
a dividend of HKS$1,000,000,000,000, have no right to vote at
general meetings, and carry the right to receive one-half of the
balance of any surplus in a return of capital in a winding up after
the holders of the ordinary shares have received a total return of
HK$500,000,000,000,000. None of the non-voting deferred shares

was held by members of the Group at the balance sheet date.

A limited company incorporated in the PRC under the law of the PRC
on 13 April 2006

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

18. RMIB A FIH#ERE @)

#Hit

Ht#

WM ZOKERENEB (Fig) K
feZoxEsTEIEHA (BER) KE QR
X

SNEBE DS

IS SRR R (D R B AR R @A
AMER1,000,000,000,000 #7ChE S 185
BRI —EA  BEEARRASE
T OERKAELTAREE AKRIR
[B1 & AN 4858 500,000,000,000,000 #ITi&
BN (] B R ) — R R E AR BIAR A o
ANEERKE A RRGEHE A ER G EEE
REEFERR D ©

RZZZTREFNA T =BREFEAER
hEIEMASZ 2 BER AR

19. At EZRE

Group Company
rEE b N
2007 2006 2007 2006
—ETLF ZTTRF 35 o3 ZTTRF
HK$°000 HKS$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT BET T BETT
Unlisted equity investment, IE LT iR
at cost BE -
ERAE 24,366 24,366 24,366 24,366
Less: Provision for impairment R ERE (11,110) (11,110] (11,110) (11,110]
13,256 13,256 13,256 13,256
Club debentures, at fair value 2EfES -
BATE 963 963 - =
14,219 14,219 13,256 13,256

The above investments were designated as available-for-sale

financial assets and have no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.

The unlisted available-for-sale equity investment is stated at cost

less impairment as the directors are of the opinion that its fair value

cannot be measured reliably.

LB BRI AR HEESREE R E
BEEZIH R REAMEK

EERRANFLTAREERARER
BERI SEMIZ A FERTE - BUABAMERUR
B -
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20. OTHER RECEIVABLE 20. Hitt R IR
Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EELF ZETRF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BET T BT
Other receivable E W kIR 5,706 6,264
Portion classified as current asset EBHARMEEE D (926) (558)
Non-current portion EMENEL D 4,780 5,706
The above balances represented the proceeds receivable from the LiESRRREEME  BERZXEEE
disposal of items of property, plant and equipment (note 34(iii) (BRFEE34(iii)) 2 FEUWRFTISFRIE » Wi GH
and were carried at amortised cost. B ANFI)BR o
=3
21. LOANS RECEIVABLE 21. RRER
Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EEtF ZETRF
HK$'000 HKS'000
BT T BT
Loans receivable FEE TR 281 469
Portion classified as current asset SHERNSEESS (188) (188)
Non-current portion ERENEL S 93 281
The loans receivable represents unsecured and interest-free URETERTAEBRE THERKARS
advances to a staff member of the Group and its carrying amount B MEERmESEAFERE -

approximates to its fair value.

—00N #%
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22.INVENTORIES 22. 78

Group

rEH
2007 2006
—BELF ZETRF
HK$°000 HKS'000
BT T AT
Raw materials R 148,515 158,583
Work in progress R 120,193 134,587
Finished goods UK 46,801 61,107
315,509 354,277

23. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 23. EWERRKREE

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit. AREBHZEEFERTEZEERN ° K
The credit period granted by the Group to customers generally EEAFEEN—REEENE+E=+H
ranges from 7 days to 35 days, extending up to 100 days for B R EEASZA 008 « &
selected customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over £ (B ) S L ok U ] SR e s

its outstanding receivables in order to minimise credit risk. Overdue

il OREEERR - BEAREERIERD

balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. In view of o _ L
REIREE RN - ENATEE R AR

the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s accounts and

bills receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, Z PR MRS RS T RIRER + FTA
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. WEREANEEER ZRAR
An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts and bills receivables as at AEBREE iR = H & E W ER
the balance sheet date, based on the invoice date, is as follows: 2R SRR A ST
Group
REH
2007 2006
e i “ETAF
HK$°000 Percentage HKS$'000 Percentage
BT Bo BT BOL
> 0 to 30 days TE=1H 125,828 63 140,346 50
3 31 to 60 days =t—EXTH 10,098 5 36,343 13
= 6110 90 days AT—ZEh+H 47,828 24 23814 9
3 Over 90 days BBA+H 15,408 8 76,924 28
O 199,162 100 277,427 100
©)
7 The Group’s accounts and bills receivables are non-interest-bearing REEZBBERRER A EREKRE
and their carrying amounts approximate to their fair values. BEEENFEES -

O
(e}
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24. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR 24. B AFEFTAERRZER
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS e

Group
#EE

2007 2006

—EBtHF —REAF

HK$'000 HKS'000

BT T BT

Listed equity investments in Hong Kong, &S EHRARE @ iEHE

at market value 10,512 10,380
The above equity investments at 31 March 2007 and 2006 were FHRAEER T +FR_TTRF
classified as held for trading. A=t HEBEAREEE -

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 25. fTHEEmT A
INSTRUMENTS
Group
rEH
2007 2006
—EBLF ZETRF
HK$°000 HKS'000
BT T BT
Forward currency contracts EHIE®EA 1,582 (1,496)

The carrying amounts of forward currency contracts approximate EHEBSH  REEEEATERE °

to their fair values.

The Group has entered into various forward currency contracts AEBEIVZMNRAEEGHNUERE
to manage its exchange rate exposures which did not meet the WA & SRR TR Z INERR o FEH
criteria for hedge accounting. Net gains of non-hedging currency HEBOTET B 2 e F8E1,600,0008
derivatives amounting to HKS1.6 million were credited to the TERFAGFANRTZR (ZZTZXRF B
income statement during the year (2006: net losses of HKS1.5 B NBREERFEE, 500,000877T) °

million were charged to the income statement).

As at 31 March 2007, the Group had outstanding forward currency R-ZET+FE=ZA=1+—8  AEEEHE ™
contracts with an aggregate notional amount of approximately HET BRI /662,000,000 7T (ZTFRN  #
HKS662 million (2006: HKS526 million) to hedge payables £ : 526,000,0007L) 2R FREHEE 9
denominated in United States dollars (“USS”). EBHEREMNZET ( [Ex] ) 3KIE - 8

I
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26.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“‘RMB”) amounted to HKS 14,807,000
(2006: HKS 11,045,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised

to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The carrying amounts of the cash and bank balances

approximate to their fair values.

26. B RIBITHE

REER  AREIAARBIEREE B
© RERTTARTFEA14,807,00087T (ZZTF
N 11,045,00097T) o ARBAAIH
BRBAEMER - AM - BEP EINE
FIERGEE  EERNEEERRE &~
SE A EBREETINERL 2 RITHA
REHIBAEMEY -

RITASRBEESRRITERNKRIUL
MERMS - REe RVITHARZRAERE

DNHERE

27. ACCOUNTS PAYABLES 27. B BRFX
An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts payables as at the AEBREEHIZEZHHTENEMNER
balance sheet date, based on the invoice date, is as follows: REEW O -
Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EELHF ZETRF

HK$'000 Percentage HKS'000 Percentage
BT Bk BT AN
0 to 30 days TE==+H 111,368 39 164,073 37
31 to 60 days =+—ZXTH 44,628 15 117,403 26
I to 90 days ANT—ZEATH 44,869 16 42,881 10
Over 90 days [ Cy e =! 87,543 30 117,530 27
288,408 100 441,887 100
The Group’s accounts payables are non-interest-bearing and are ENEREZAERER—RR=1TEZE—8B _1+

normally settled on 30 to 120 days. The carrying amounts of the

accounts payables approximate to their fair values.

HAS - B RRZIREESEEAFE
yisk=
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND
OTHER BORROWINGS

Current
Finance lease payables
(note 29)

Bank loans — unsecured

Trust receipt loans

Non-current
Finance lease payables
(note 29)

Bank loans — unsecured

BN
P ERMNFE
(Hia£29)

RITER — B

EREEER

JERNH
TS RN A
(Bizt29)

RITE R — B

Effective
interest
rate (%)

BERFIE (%)

563 -836

543 -575

523 -06.1

563 -836

523-548

28. FTRBITRHEMER

Group
EE

2007 2006

= =t G

Maturity HK$°000 HKS$'000

k) BETT BETT

March 2008 10,640 10,532
—TT)\F=H

March 2008 133,464 48,333
—ZTT)N\F=A

30 June 2007 229,007 195,723
—TTLHF
~NH=+H

373,111 254,588
April 2008 -

January 2010 15,653 25,239
—EE/\FHAE
—Z-TF—H

April 2008 - 141,132 181,000
April 2011
—2T/\FRAE
—T——50A

156,785 206,239

529,896 460,827

—~00N %
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND 28. ;T RBITREMEE @
OTHER BORROWINGS /continuep)
Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EBBLEF ZETREF
HK$'000 HKS$'000
BT T BETT
Analysed into: DITA -
Bank loans repayable: AR THIFEERAIRITER

Within one year or on demand —F R ERFER 362,471 244,056
In the second year FE_F 92,632 92,000

In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE=FEFRF
(BREEME) 48,500 89,000
503,603 425,056

Finance lease payables: FhE T E R R
Within one year —FR 10,640 10,532
In the second year FE_F 8,417 10,396

In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=FZFERF
(BREEME) 7.236 14,843
26,293 35,771
529,896 460,827
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28. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND 28. T RBITREMEER @

OTHER BORROWINGS /contivueD)

As at 31 March 2007, all the Group’s bank borrowings were RZZBEZ+F=A=1+—H " F1IE4A5%E
secured by a corporate guarantee granted by the Company HRITEESRARRRHADEERL
and cross-corporate guarantees granted by certain subsidiaries ETHB AR EAR R B AREL R EE
and the Company. As disclosed in note 38(b) to the financial RIEIEIR o S0 BF IS SRR M e 38 (b) BT #%
statements, under the terms of a loan agreement, the chairman = BEERBZGER  ARREEED
of the Company, Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon, being the single largest NAEEERE —HRARR - WHERERK
shareholder and is actively involved in the management and SEMNEBRER  BARARRZFHERE
business of the Group, is required to maintain at least 40% of the BRI 40% ©

beneficial interests in shareholdings in the Company.

Other interest rate information: HMFRER :
Group
r5HE
2007 2006
ZEELE ZEERE
Fixed rate Floating rate Fixed rate Floating rate
EEF= FER= [E] 7 A = FETIX
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
B¥TR BETR BT T BT
Finance lease payables BEMERNTIA 6,926 19,367 9,749 26,022
Bank loans - unsecured  RITEF — KA 25,503 478,100 = 425,056
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest-bearing bank and AEEM BRI REMEE ZRHEER
other borrowings approximate to their fair values. HAVERE °

—~00N %%
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BMEHERNRER

AREAALETHEREEEEHEE
2P RSB ABERE - 5 TS
NF—EMEFS - RZBBLF=A=
+—B - REEREANRRRERSS
ERARENT :

29. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 29.

The Group leases certain of its plant and machinery for its

o

operations. These leases are classified as finance leases and have
remaining lease terms ranging from one to four years. At 31 March
2007, the total future minimum lease payments under finance

leases and their present values were as follows:

Present value Present value

of minimum of minimum
Minimum lease Minimum lease lease lease
Group payments payments payments payments
EfEfRe BEHS
AEHE BEHEE BEEE BE B
2007 2006 2007 2006
“ERLE ZEERE “EBLE —ETRF
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000
BETT BETT BETR BT
Amounts payable: ARTFIFHER :
Within one year —FR 11,904 12,319 10,640 10,532
In the second year F_F 9,096 11,558 8,417 10,396
In the third to fifth years, F=BERF
inclusive (ARERRF) 7,506 15671 7,236 14,843
Total minimum finance BERERE
lease payments Hess 28,506 39,548 26,293 35,771
Future finance charges ARBMEEH (2,213 (3,777)
Total net finance lease payables BB ERENIFUE
BEEER 26,293 35,771
Portion classified as current BEANYAR
liabilities (note 28) 85 (KzE28) (10,640) (10,532
Non-current portion /note 28/ JEREEHH
(Hizt28) 15,653 25239

—JIOOD 1oday jenuuy
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30. DEFERRED TAX 30. EEEBH
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year FREERBEENREEMNZENT :
are as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities EEHESE
Group &M
2007
“EELE
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of
related Development Revaluation
depreciation costs of properties Total
BEARTE
ZITERE RERA EftME act
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS’000
BB BT BT BT
At 1 April 2006 RZZETREMA—H 19,224 1,349 12,420 32993
Deferred tax charged to FRRYEE IR
the income statement HIRIET R
during the year (note 10) (Hizt10) 2891 1,593 - 4,484
Deferred tax debited to equity ~ FRRERRINERA
during the year: RIERUA |
Surplus on revaluation BEAR - - 3,120 3,120
Change in tax rate EEE
(note 3ii) (Hiet3/ii) - - 15,253 15,253
Exchange realignment B 4, AR - - 593 593
Gross deferred tax liabilities BEREA GRS
at 31 March 2007 i a2
=A=1+—-H 22,115 2,942 31,386 56,443

—00N #%
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30. DEFERRED TAX (continuep)

30. EZEBE @)

Deferred tax assets EERIEEE
Group KEH
2007
—EB2tF
Losses available
for offset
against future
taxable profit Others Total
GIREE)
HERERB
A EE Hit @5t
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT T BT BT
At 1 April 2006 RN_EENFMNA—H 3,117 364 3,481
Deferred tax (charged)/credited FRRIEER () FtA
to the income statement RBEERRIE (K 10)
during the year [note 10) (322) 643 321
Gross deferred tax assets at RZET+F=A=+—H
31 March 2007 HIERET I8 & E AR RE 2,795 1,007 3,802
Net deferred tax liabilities R-ZEZ+F=A=+—H
at 31 March 2007 KRR IR B (E)F 52,641
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30. DEFERRED TAX (conTiNUED) 30. IEERIE (@)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHREERE
Group EH
2006
N
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of
related Development Revaluation
depreciation Costs of properties Total
AR E
LIERTE RN BfE w5t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT BT BT AT
As 1 April 2005 RZZETHFMA—H 24,612 1,091 12,536 38,239
Deferred tax charged/(credited)  FRRMEZR NG,/
to the income statement (5t A\) RIEIERE
during the year fnote 10) (Fizi0) (5.388) 258 (116 (5.246)
Gross deferred tax liabilities EERIEEEESR
at 31 March 2006 RZZTRF
=ZR=r—=8E 19,224 1,349 12,420 32,993
Deferred tax assets EERBEE
Group REE
2006
ZEERF
Losses available
for offset
against future
taxable profit Others Total
A {4 8
H1& fE R TR
) 8 B 18 HAth “as
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
BT BT BT T
At 1 April 2005 R-ZZZEHFMA—A 6,118 412 6,530
Deferred tax charged to the — FRIRKREFTINRE
income statement during EERIIE (Mfatio0)
the year (note 10) (3,001) (48) (3,049) ﬁ
5
Gross deferred tax assets at R-EERFEF=A=+—HH 2
31 March 2006 EREBEEERE 3,117 364 3481 O
@)
Net deferred tax liabilities at R-TBERF=A=+—HH 7
31 March 2006 REFIEE BFE 29512 o
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30. DEFERRED TAX (continuep)
Deferred tax assets

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HKS$38,459,000 (2006: HKS$31,536,000) and in Mainland China
of approximately HKS5,095,000 (2006: Nil) that are available
indefinitely and for a five-year period, respectively, for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
were arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as the directors consider not probable that
the subsidiaries will have sufficient future taxable profits against

which those losses be utilised.

At 31 March 2007, there was no significant unrecognised deferred
tax liability (2006: Nil) for taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries as the
Group has no liability to additional tax should such amounts be

remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

31. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised: e ¢
1,200,000,000 (2006: 1,200,000,000)
ordinary shares of HKSO0.10 each

0.1078 TR E @A

Issued and fully paid: EEITREE :
952,889,962 (2006: 952,889,962)
ordinary shares of HKS0.10 each

0. 10T E AR

Share options

Details of the Company’'s share option scheme are included in note

32 to the financial statements.

30.

31.

1,200,000,0000% (=TT /N4 :
1,200,000,0008%) &RXMEE

952,889,9628% (ZZTZ/R4F :
952,889,9620%) =X EE

EZERIE @)
EERIBEEE

REEBRBEERTPRHEELEZHIBEE
D RA 38,459,000 (ZEE R
1 31,536,00087T) RAIAS5,095,0007%
T (ZFEARF &) - pRIAERAS
HERNAEFERRRETE - UIKEELE
B2 R A ARRERT S o W R E
BERERECHREBEE  WHBAREER
B A R AI BE B 7o B 2 R R E AR Bl v
IS SHEZ FE1E o

R_ZZTLE=ZA=+—8  TERLE
EE THE R R 2 ARE LR EAZBIE
MEBEERARERECHEERE (ZZ2F
NFE)  REARMWASEELNZES
B HUEBIHIEBERRE -

ARARN FREZ RS EMEHY
@,

=

N

e

Company
AN

2007 2006
—EEtF ZETRF
HK$°000 HKS$'000
BET T BET T
120,000 120,000
95,289 95,289

BRE

ARRIBRER BIFBENPBRKRM T
32°
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 32. BRHESTE

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Option
Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group'’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Option Scheme include the
Company’s executive directors or employees of the Group. The
Option Scheme became effective upon the listing of the Company’s
shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”’) on 16 October 1997 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Option Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. No option may be granted to
any employee which, if exercised in full, would result in the total
number of shares already issued and issuable to him/her under
the Option Scheme exceeding 25% of the maximum aggregate
number of shares subject to the Option Scheme at the time it is
proposed to grant the relevant option to such employee.

The exercise price of the share options is determined by the
directors and is equal to the higher of: (i) the nominal value of the
shares; and (ii) a price, which is not less than 85% of the average
closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of
such options.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or
to vote at shareholders” meetings.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Option Scheme at any time from the date of acceptance of the
option by an employee or such later date as may be fixed by the
directors, to any date prior to the tenth anniversary of such date,
provided that the employee can only exercise a maximum of
20% of the options granted to him/her in each 12-month period
following the commencement of the relevant option period. The
consideration to be paid by the employee upon acceptance of a
grant of options is HKS 1.00.

ARrRRAEBERESS ( TBERES
2)  BEERZSEHAEEREBAH]
BEMERN G ERSEA TR 5RE) & 52
B BREAISERZEALBEAR
AMITESFHAKEREE - BRESEIR
ARRBOR—AALFE+ATRBESR
BEaRZAAERNR ( [BRHF] ) L
MRERR  BRGBUHRIERT SN - AT 8
B Lt B ER AR - BHI10%F -

RIBBEAERTE B AT TREMERITE
BREHE LR - HERNERREETE
R 7R 22 R A ) s ) B BT A O 1096
fWEEREEREERE  MEmiTEs
AERESERREERETIEHTR
AETTRZERERENRNAR  BRER
BEREFHEBRETZEEE ZRBRE
SRR R BB ER25% - AITEM
ZEEEBRHERE -

BRETEERESETE  BER TR
=& ()RHEE &) MERARF K
DEZERHBHEEBREZ BT AERS
B TEHE R2 P A 39 IR T (B 85% A B 1% o

BT T TRHBAZTAREKARE
RRERRZIERH -

EREETNEEMBERE L BRESHE
AIEMRZABEEZAMR+FERE
B LR - B8 B 1R AR B A AT B 0 IR SRAT
(ERBRHE - 1fE7S REIE B 72 A BE R O HA R
FIESE 2B A BEERTERZER
ERBREN20%  BEEERMRHZE
PR A ANV RE /& 1.00/8 7T °

Sl

Py
With effect from 1 September 2001, the Stock Exchange requires BE-ZEE—FNA—B BMIMEEE 2
that the exercise price of options is at least the higher of the closing RIEFKETEEAATIRSE  BHOK @)
prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant REOBBEBEIHEmELRROEEZEZ O
and the average of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock i B EAT A E2R 5 B 8 ATy T ik 7
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the MfE - BEXARELH ARRRZTZE 07

date of grant. Up to the date of this report, the Company has not
granted any option on or after 1 September 2001.

—FAA-BHZRILER D EABER
-
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (conTmuep 32. BRETE @
[ )
The following share options were outstanding under the Option TR ERIRERTEIT R TTE B
Scheme during the year: AT
At 1 April 2006 and Date of grant of Exercise period Exercise price
at 31 March 2007 share options of share options of share options*
REBBAREF
A—BR
R=ZBLHF iBaR A B IR IR
=A=+—8 i B 1758 TEE>
HKS per share
BRET
Directors
BE
Ling Siu Man, Simon 15,000,000 07-04-00 10-04-00 0.467
& —ETE]E to 09-04-10
mA+ER —ETTHF
MA+AZE
— T T4
MmANE
Liu Hoi Keung, Gary 2,715,000 07-04-00 10-04-00 0.467
B —RETTE to 09-04-10
MA+H —ETTF
MA+HZ
2T
MANHE
Lee Ka Yue, Peter 2,715,000 07-04-00 10-04-00 0.467
=] —ETTEF to 09-04-10
MA+H —ETTF
mA+HA=E
—T—ZF
MANE
Wong Ki Cheung 2,715,000 07-04-00 10-04-00 0.467
=HHE —ETEAE to 09-04-10
mA+ER —ETTHF
MA+AZE
— T T4
mANR
Li Fung Ching, Catherine 2,715,000 07-04-00 10-04-00 0.467
FRE —ETEF to 09-04-10
MA+H —ETTF
MA+HEZ
> —E-TF
3 /AR E
53 Au Wai Man 2,715,000 07-04-00 10-04-00 0.467
3 EER ZTTTEF to 09-04-10
N MA+H —ETTF
2 mA+AZ
O —T-TF
O MANE

o
©
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Y
32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (conTmuep) 32. BIRAESTE @
At 1 April 2006 and Date of grant of Exercise period Exercise price
at 31 March 2007 share options of share options of share options*
REZBZEAREF
mA—-AR
R=BZLHF BB E BB fRRE
=A=t+—H R A8 1TEH THEE"
HKS per share
BRAT
Lam Kwai Wah 1,650,000 07-04-00 10-04-00 0.467
AL TR t0 09-04-10
mAER —TTTF
mMA+HZE
—E—TF
MANE
30,225,000
Other employees
Hiifg g
In aggregate 34,950,000 07-04-00 10-04-00 0.467
é% —TRTE t0 09-04-10
MALH —TETE
mA+BEZ
T
mANHE
65,175,000
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in & B T E R RS BEITAR
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the AN AR AN B b AB U S B R R R o
Company'’s share capital.
At the balance sheet date and the date of approval of these NEE R EARTERRERE - NAF]
financial statements, the Company had 65,175,000 share options BIREAREET 21 A 65, 175,0008% M AR 1T
outstanding under the Option Scheme, which represented FEERRHE - (EARARARINZERE 2 B 31T
approximately 6.8% of the Company's shares in issue at these XD 476 8% © AN 7138 A PR 24 2R 18
dates. The exercise in full of the remaining share options would, = PETES TEREEER AN T
under the present capital structure of the Company, result in the 1TEEINGS, 175,000 @R A (D @ WG E
issue of 65,175,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company BEBINR AR 6,517, 5008 T R IRMD HE L
and additional share capital of HK6,517,500 and share premium of 23,919,000/ (RetFX) -
approximately HKS23,919,000 (before issue expenses).
33. RESERVES 33, &8
(a) Group (a) AEE N
4
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements NEBRAKEERLEBTEE 2HE -
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the REMEHEBER T IFHREKREISE C%
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 38 of IR EARREHREY o O
the financial statements. 7
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33. @& @
(a) X&EE )

33. RESERVES (continueD)

(a) Group (continued)

QOON 110day [enuuy

o

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the share capital
of the former holding company of the Group acquired
pursuant to the Group reorganisation to rationalise
the Group structure in preparation for the listing of the
Company's shares on the Stock Exchange, over the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

REENBARBIEASEREFHAR
RE R E T EEAREE
REFETHEBEAEMEBNASE
B RTER A R AEE - BHAAR
FhIULE S AR BT AR () (B RO ZHR ©

(b) Company (b) &AF
Share
premium Contributed Retained
account surplus profits Total
R EER BB RE R st
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 April 2005 “ZEREMNA-A 59,098 58,794 32364 150,256
Loss for the year TEEBE - - (11,092) (11,092)
Proposed final 2006 dividend 8K =ZEAFRERE - - (9.529) (9529)
At 31 March 2006 and “ZTRFE=A=1-H
at 1 April 2006 RZZT ENA-A 59,098 58,794 11,743 129,635
Profit for the year RERRN - - 40,007 40,007
Proposed final 2007 dividend B =Z T+ ERHRE - - (9.529) (9,529
At 31 March 2007 I e e = 59,098 58,794 22 160,113

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess
of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the reorganisation referred to in note 33(a)
to the financial statements, over the nominal value of the
Company's shares issued in exchange therefor.

Under the Companies Law (2002 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account of the Company is
available for distribution to shareholders, subject to the
provisions of the Company’'s memorandum or articles of
association and provided that immediately following the
distribution of dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts
as and when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
In the opinion of the directors, the Company’'s reserves
available for distribution represent the share premium
account, contributed surplus and retained profits.

RRAFHBHABBRIER BT B R K
MI5E33(a)Brit 82 48 BT Uk B BT B8 2 A)
2B ATFE BEARBRRILR
BMBETROEAENEEE °

REFSHRERFE (ZET_F&
FIAN) - BRARBABEIEAMA
AISZBREEIN  ARR AR
EBRAEDIRTEIR - GG RALR
AIZARNEREIKERBEAEEEAER
EEBTEHNER -EFRR A
RE AT DR R AR ERR
BABER ARG o
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34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Major non-cash transactions

(1)

(i)

During the year, the Group entered into finance lease
arrangements in respect of property, plant and equipment
with a total capital value at the inception of the leases of
HKS 1,246,000 (2006: HKS12,138,000).

During the year, deposits for acquisition of items of
property, plant and equipment of HK$31,014,000 (2006:
HKS1,715,000) were utilised as part of the considerations
paid for the purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment.

During the year, the Group disposed of certain items of
property, plant and equipment for a consideration of
HKS$8,842,000 (2006: HKS8,607,500), of which Nil (2006:
HKS1,017,500) was received during the year and the
remaining balance of HK$8,842,000 (2006: HKS7,590,000)
was recorded as an other receivable at its amortised cost of
Nil (2006: HKS6,246,000) at year end.

35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

34. GERERERMEE

FEFRERS

(i)

(i)

FRN - AEERYWE - BEKEE
FIVRIETHERH - REIZZEM
W ZEWE - BEREKENE
REBEEE,246,0008 7T (ZFER
4 :12,138,00087T) °

FRN - BEVE WELRXEEE
HET£31,014,00087 (ZTZX
& 1,715000%87C) BEEA - E
tﬁ%,%% WE R EEE /3
DB ©

FN - NREBELAK(ES 842,000 7T
(ZEZERF 18,607,500/ 7T)
HERETYWE  BERKKEES -
M':F"f/%ﬂ:( 73;/\¢_
1,017,500%7T) B R RUER - i
#308,842,0008 70 (ZTT/N4EF ¢
7,590,000/ 7T) RILATE4E B 2 #ESHK
AREHRT (ZFZINEF 6,246,000
TL) ABRZIVEE M FEURSRIA -

35. AREE

At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided @) REER  KRPEHREPEERK
for in the financial statements were as follows:; SREEWT :
Group Company
piS-1 NG|
2007 2006 2007 2006
“EELE ZRENE “EELE ZZTF
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BETRL BETTT BETT BETT
Guarantees for general banking  ANBARIN—K
facilties of subsidiaries* BITEERIER - - 1,466,339 1292,175
Guarantees for the purchases ~ —TEHIBARIAY
of a subsidiary RERR - - 459
Shipping guarantees SR 10,294 10,071 - -
10,294 10,071 1,466,339 1,296,771

* At 31 March 2007, HK$529,896,000 (2006: HKS460,827,000)
of the general banking facilities were utilised by the

subsidiaries.

# R=ZTTLtF=A=+—H "M
BARIESAN—RRITEEAR
529,896,000 7T (ZTT/RF :
460,827,000/75) °

—~00N %%
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35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (conTinuED)

(D)

()

On 12 September 2006, two former customers of  Tonic
Appliances Limited (“Tonic Appliances’), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, commenced legal proceedings
against Tonic Appliances claiming for damages for the
breach of agreement for the sale of goods in the sum
of HKS3,653,000 together with interest. As at the date
of approval of these financial statements, the case is still
undergoing discovery stage and both parties had not yet

exchanged their evidence.

In the opinion of the directors, the case was still in its
preliminary stage and it was premature to speculate the
outcome of such claims therefore, no provision was made
as at 31 March 2007.

On 6 April 2007, Toshiba Corporation and Toshiba America
Consumer Products, LL.C. (“Toshiba”) filed a civil complaint
against nine of the Company’s subsidiaries (the “Defendants”)
alleging their infringement of Toshiba's DVD technology
patents. Toshiba sought for permanently enjoining and
restraining Defendants from further infringement and
damages. The Defendants have taken legal advice on filing
of defence. As at the date of these financial statements, the
claim was still in a preliminary stage and taken into account
the advice from the Group’s legal advisers, the Group made
a provision against the claims as at 31 March 2007.

In the opinion of the directors, the amount of provision
made by the Group as at 31 March 2007 was adequate
to cover the ultimate liability of this claim and any cost of
defence of the action for this claim.

35. RAREE @

(B)

RZZEZERFNA+T=H AREZE
ENBARIRNRAERERAR

((RARE]) 2 MBAIBFHHER
HEERRREZIERARNIRERFA
AR BRI ARE3,653,0008 T
(FERF S )2 B E o B /EZF IS
HRERER ZEGHNENTEREE
& FNARIRE R -

EERR BHNERTIZHEER - &)
BRBARBRECAERRNBE LT -
Bt R-ERLF=A=+—RH1)
RIEH B -

RZZEZELFMARE  RZRE R
Toshiba America Consumer Products,
LLC ([ERZ]) mARRNAEMBEA
Al ([EEA]) EHRE=ERE 58
FERILR S ZDVDREITEF#E - R
SEFOKAZIE R IREAE—F
RILHENERRREE - HEASH
RRNFARIEEER ~BEREY
BHREFERER  REENR IR
R ERIAEEEEERCER
% AEBER-_BZELF=A=+
—HAREELRE -

EEZRR ARER_ZTTLEF=H
=T REHZBR SRR ARNZ
RIEZ HEEE  UEHZREMR
ERZ BT B Z (IR o
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36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)  The Group leases certain of its buildings under operating
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for a term of 10
years.

At 31 March 2007, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases
with its tenant falling due as follows:

Within one year —FR

In the second to fifth years, FE_FFEREF
inclusive (BEEEMF)

After five years &

(b)  The Group leases certain of its properties under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for
terms ranging from one to four years.

At 31 March 2007, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

—%FR

Within one year

In the second to fifth years, inclusive SBE_Z=FRF (BEEEMRF)

At the balance sheet date, the Company had no operating
lease arrangements (2006: Nil).

36. KEHERH

(a) Zli‘i EREELHERHIHES TE
- AR 0%F -

R-ZBZF=RA=+—H  &A&EH
RIFEAMFRIN 2 AR R &=
ERTFIHR R H M 2 R RSB
THEFRAE

Group

REE
2007
= A
HK$°000
BETT

2006
ZETRF
HKS$'000
BB T T

1,076 =

4,304 =

3,587 =

8,967 =

(b) AEBERBELLHERHHEEREET
W - MERDOBITFHRNF—
P4 o

RIZZLF=A=1t—H  ~&EH
AR EEA AR TR
XM ARRRERSLER

Group

REE
2007 2006
—BELF et £ i
HK$°000 HKS$'000
BT BT
2,007 3,135
2,924 3,962
4,931 7,097

REHER  ARBUEBEAKLEHELH

—~00N %%
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37. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note

36(b) above, the Group had the following capital commitments at

the balance sheet date:

Contracted, but not provided for:
Equipment and tools
Moulds

Authorised, but not contracted for:
Subscription of shares in a company

DETAB R B
HERTAE
HE

EREERTLH
REE—H R A Z K&

37. &iE

Br £ CHIRE36(b) P af i A% & A0 SRS -
REBREF ARG A TNEREAE :

Group

#EE
2007 2006
= A —ETRF
HK$°000 HKS$'000
BT T BETIT
53 3,748
- 257
53 4,005
54,600 =
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38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS,
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS,
AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere

in these financial statements, the Group had the following related

party
years:

(a)

()

and connected transactions during the current and prior

During the vyear, the Group did not enter into any
transactions with Pioneer Ventures Limited (“PVL"), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of EganaGoldpfeil (Holdings) Limited
(“EganaGoldpfeil”), which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company. During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Group
sold audio and video products and related components
amounting to HKS$22,137,000 to PVL. The sales to PVL were
made according to the published prices and conditions
offered to the other major customers of the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Group signed a
term loan facility agreement for a syndicated loan HKS 150
million for a period of three years. Under the terms of the
agreement, the chairman of the Company, Mr. Ling Siu Man,
Simon, being the single largest shareholder and is actively
involved in the management and business of the Group, is
required to maintain at least 40% of the beneficial interests
in shareholdings in the Company.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

Short term employee benefits RHES R

Post-employment benefits B & 1E A

Total compensation paid ENEEERBAR
to key management personnel WS4

Further details of directors” emoluments are included in note
8 to the financial statements.

3. EALIRG  BEXXZR
BFERERS

BREI SRR E B D IR 5 RAERRID
AEERAERERBEFEE THIBEA
TREERS

(B)

FANAREB IR EPioneer Ventures
Limited ( [PVL] ) —KEMEIPREE
BRARE ([BMERE]) MEEWE
AR (ARREERR) EITEMAR
S BEZET A NF=A=1+—8"
AEEHEEE22,137,0008 TS
BEGEREMRBBAZSHHLPVL [
PVLSREEMIIIBIBEABRIZASE
Hit = ZXRERMEETT

HE_ZTEZXF=-A=+—81Lt
FE AEERAH=-FHEE
150,000,000/8 7T Z SR E R ERF] E
HEREE o BIBEHREK - A
RRIEFEDELE (RARNEEKE
—SABRREEG2EAEENEE
RE) BREEARREREZER

e

x> 40% °

BEAEEFEEEAS :

2007 2006
—BRtF i
HK$°000 HKS'000
T T BT T
14,394 13,545
580 562
14,974 14,107

EEME 2 — T BRI RE
MIES ©

—~00N %%

U1
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38.

39.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS,
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS,
AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (continuep)

The related party transaction in respect of item (a) above also
constituted a continuing connected transaction as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March
2006.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments, other than derivatives,
comprise interest-bearing bank borrowings, finance leases, and
cash and bank balances. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
accounts and bills receivables and accounts payables, which arise

directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is to manage
its sources of finance and the currency risks arising from the

Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
cash flow interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liguidity risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below. The Group’s
accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set out in note 2.4

to the financial statements.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The interest rates of the interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
of the Group are disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements.
The Group believes its exposure to cash flow interest rate risk is
minimal.

38.

39.

BEALIRS  BEXZR
BFERERS @

NE@BEBEALRZEB EHRIAE
AR ZHENMBREBEE —_TEAF=A
=+ HIFEZHEBRERS -

M EREEBERBE

AEBEZFESBMTAE (FTETARIN
BIEFRRITEE BMEHEERRERR
ThEsR c ZE eI AZFEBNARMAK
SEXBERES - AKEHEZREM
cREERAE (PINRBERRREER
RN ERAERBESE

AEBMETITETLIARS T2 REH
E¥aH EEEEHEESRRRELR
AEEEBZINERR

AEESBMTIEMELEZ T ERAKRARS
A EERE - SMNERR - EERRRITE
BEoRR  EFSRIKAZEESEZ
FRRZER  ZFBURN T o A
SEFITET B2 S BER SR I % Mk
MizE2.4 ©

BERMRER

AEEZFBRITREMBERSBHRER
MIEE28KRE - AEERR/EMARZ Z2RE
AR R AR o
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

39. M HBEREEBRBEREE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continueD) ()

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures
arise from substantial portion of sales or purchases by operating
units in USS and RMB. The Group is exposed to foreign currency
risk in respect of transactions in USS and RMB. Considering that
there is insignificant fluctuation in the exchange rates of USS and
RMB against Hong Kong dollars, the Group believes its exposure

to exchange rate risk is minimal.

The Group constantly reviews the economic situation and its foreign
currency risk profile, and considers implementing appropriate
hedging measures in future as the need arises.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade
on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In

addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis.

SN L B

AEBRAZINERZRAR - ZFREBRIK
BURELTRARERELEMN CAEE
B o REBAARAETRAREREL
RHZINERR - REBETRARKE
BT BRE KRR - AEERSE
TS 2 SN R i A AR AR

A B T E RN R SNEA R A
A URKRTHBEERZEEEE 2
RN o

FEER

AEEEHECHEABRACEZF=ZTET
B5 AEBZERRRABRNAEEDRE
TESZEPHAERREERBRF It
S MR T AR B R R -

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy AR AEBEREERANAEEZE=H
third parties, there is generally no requirement for collateral. EITES i MRATIFERRR -

Liquidity risk

The Group'’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank

and other borrowings.

The Group consistently maintains a prudent financing policy and
ensures that sufficient cash and credit lines are maintained to meet

the Group’s liquidity requirements.

REBE TR

AREER B BERNEBEM BRTRE
MER  REESHEERTIENT
-

AEEREESEERVREER - ARERE
HERHASREEEEATAARER
BETHME °

—~00N %%

~N



Tonic Industries Holdings Limited 3R H & 2% ZER A R A &

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#53R &Mzt

31 March 2007 —ZEZE+F=A=+—H

40. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT 40. ZFEHREHE
On 9 May 2007, Tonic Venture Capital Limited (“Tonic Venture’), R-IEZEL+FHANLE ARG ZHEESE
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into ZMIB AR Tonic Venture Capital Limited
a conditional share subscription agreement with Cove Partners LLC ( [Tonic Venture] ) BiCove Partners&Cove
and Cove Sunrise Inc. (“Cove Sunrise”). Pursuant to the agreement, Sunrise Inc. ( [Cove Sunrise] ) AT —BHIE
Tonic Venture agreed to subscribe for 675 shares in Cove Sunrise, 1R SREB 3% + #R i Tonic Venture[RIE M)
representing 45% of the total capital stock of Cove Sunrise for not Cove Sunrisex i1~ %547,000,0003% 7T (18
more than USS7 million (equivalent to approximately HKS$54.6 B I#154,600,00087T) * R 6758 Cove
million) (the “Proposed Transaction”). The Proposed Transaction Sunrisef&13  fCove SunrisefX A 42EE45%
constituted a disclosable transaction for the Company under the ([EzR5]) B FHHEA &35
Listing Rules and this was disclosed in a circular of the Company BRARBZATEERS MZXZER
dated 21 May 2007. ARRIEHA—ZETLFRA-T—RAZA

BH A H% BR

The Proposed Transaction has yet to be completed as at the date RBETBERERER  BRERZINARTE
of approval of these financial statements. X °

41. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 41. BBBRO#LE
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue B RERER _ZEZE+F LA -_+HBEE
by the board of directors on 25 July 2007. ERgE - WERETIE -

QOON 110day [enuuy
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY F FBf#EE R E

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited

financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out

below.

RESULTS

REVENUE

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Tax

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

WA

BR 5 A1k 7

I8

RE A

Year ended 31 March
BZE=R=1+—HLEE

UTIRASEBREREMBEREZRE - BER
BEMS - WFERIRHEEE TSR
B YEFHEEEY BHHME -

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
—BRtE ZTTRHF ZTTHF ZTTOF ZTT=F
HK$°000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
BT T BEFT BETT BT BETF T

(Restated) (Restated)

(&251) (E51)

2,599,414 2,392,219 2,636,294 2,074,140 2,680,277
31,685 18,509 29,538 20,871 53,495
(7,673) 101 (1,684) 5575 (10,194)
24,012 18,610 27,854 26,446 43,301

—~00N %%

O



30O voday jenuuy

N
o

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited 3R H & 2% ZER A R A &

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY F FEBf#EE R =

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

TOTAL ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES

EEREE

At 31 March

R=A=+—8
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
—ZEELFE T RF —TTHF TTEF —TT=F
HK$°000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT T BT BT BT BT

(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&%)

BEHBTE 1,483,583 1,520,653 1,337,608 1,452,896 1,123,775
BEERE (942,213)  (1,012,587) (840,887)  [1,063,997) (737,094)
541,370 508,066 496,721 388,899 386,681
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PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP A& EiFHFE ZWE

31 March 2007 #E—_ZEZT+F=H=+—H

Particulars of properties held by the Group as at 31 March 2007 are as AEBR-_ZT+F=-A=+—HFEZMEF
follows: BT

PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD BY THE AEBEEBAEE2YERES
GROUP IN HONG KONG

Type Lease term

1. Units D, G and H on 4th Floor, Industrial Medium
Summit Building,
30 Man Yue Street and
21-23 Tai Wan Road,
Hung Hom,
Kowloon

JLEE T AR A
AR

RWHE305% &

AERE21 =235

BEKNE

41D « GMHERML

2. Unit B on 10th Floor, Industrial Medium
Summit Building,
30 Man Yue Street and
21-23 Tai Wan Road,
Hung Hom,
Kowloon

Ak T AR A
AR

RWHE305% &

ARERE2 1 =235

HEKE

101EBE L

3. Units A, B, L and O on 1 1th Floor, Industrial Medium
Summit Building,
30 Man Yue Street and
21-23 Tai Wan Road,
Hung Hom,
Kowloon

b T R ER
AR

RWE305%E &

AERE2 1 =235

BEKNE

1 1#8A ~ B LROEESL

—00N #%
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PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP A&BEiFHE W%

31 March 2007 —ZEZF+F=A=+—H

PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD BY THE rEEEEBFAZYERS
GROUP IN HONG KONG (continueD) (4%)
Type Lease term
B/E By
4, Town House No. 113, Residential Medium

Sunderland Estate,
| Hereford Road,
Kowloon Tong,
Kowloon

b = F H
EEsE

ERE I

FEE

FB113F*EE

5. Flat D on 14th Floor, Residential Long
Block 8,
6 Tak Hong Street,
Whampoa Garden Site 11,
Hung Hom,
Kowloon

JLEE F=E ~H
ATHY

EHHEESE | 18

EEREH

FEQRE

14EDE

6. Lorry Car Parking Car park Medium
Spaces Nos. 7, 8, 9 and 10 on Ist Floor
Summit Building,
30 Man Yue Street and
21-23 Tai Wan Road,
Hung Hom,
Kowloon

ki By AR HR
AR

R¥WHE305% &

AIRE2 1 =235

HERNE

11857 8 9IKI105

EEHE

30O voday jenuuy
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PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP A& EiFHFE ZWE

31 March 2007 #E—_ZEZT+F=H=+—H

PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD BY THE AEBEEBAEE2YERES
GROUP IN HONG KONG (continueD) (4#)

Type Lease term

BE A

7. Private Car Parking Car park Medium
Spaces Nos. 10, 14, 21 and 22 on Basement
Summit Building,
30 Man Yue Street and
21-23 Tai Wan Road,
Hung Hom,
Kowloon

k- B HRER
AR

R E305: %

ARIRE2 1 =235

FBERNE

HEESE 10 14~ 21} 225k

FLREIJREBNL

PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD BY THE AEBEHAEEE2WERES
GROUP IN THE PRC

Type Lease term

B HH

8. An industrial complex in Industrial Medium
Shitanpu Administrative Zone
Tangxia Town,
Dongguan,
Guangdong Province

ERE T 7 A
R

YEE A

REHEEREY

GAETEE

—00N #%
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PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP A&BEiFHE W%

31 March 2007 —ZEZF+F=A=+—H

PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD BY THE rEBEFREEZYXER
GROUP IN THE PRC (continuep) (4%)
Type Lease term
EE bk
9. An industrial complex in Industrial Medium
Zhenhua Industrial District
Qishi Town,
Dongguan,

Guangdong Province

ERE T% R B
Bt

FHE

RETERZ

FATHEE

10.  Unit AB05 Industrial Medium
Tiananchuangxin Technology Square
Shenzhen City

Guangdong Province

A EY T HRER
i)

KL HWE

BIFTRH &5

APBEBO5ZE

11. An industrial complex in Industrial Medium
Huangjiabo Village
ShiPai Town, Shi Pai

Dongguan,
Guangdong Province
o1
g EE4 T 5
g H=T
N BHEREA
C2> ERBH
O HIXE
T

N
N
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